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 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 

shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

· Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested 

to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank Details 

OR Date of 

Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in 

the company records in order to login. 

· If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio 

number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 
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Annexure- Details of Proposed Director

Sr. No. Name of Directors Parveen Kumar Goel

1 Director Identification Number (DIN) 00014638

2 Date of Birth 02.07.1963

3 Permanent Account Number (PAN) AEPPG5274B

4 Date of Appointment on the Board 09/03/1995

5 Experience in specific functional area 30 Yrs

6 Expertise in specific functional area

Shri Praveen Kumar Goel, is well experienced 

person. He has good marketing skill. He is 

actively engaged in the marketing business of 

the company since a long time. 

7
No. of equity shares held in the Company 

(as on 31st March, 2014)
1,17,000

8 Qualification Graduate

9 List of other Directorships NONE

10
Membership/Chairman of Committees of 

the other Companies
NIL

11
Relationships, if any, between Directors 

inter se
-
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DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
Dear Members, 
 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting you their 25thAnnual Report on the business and operations of the company together 
with the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2020. 
  
FINANCIAL RESULTS (AS PER IND AS):      

(INR in Lacs) 
 CURRENT YEAR           PREVIOUS YEAR 
 31/03/2020 31/03/2019 

Net Sale/Income from Operations 14426.71 25220.46 
Other Income  1.49 13.30 

Total Income 14428.20 25233.76 
Profit before Finance Charges, Depreciation & Tax                                          329.21 671.67 
Finance Charges 221.12 505.01 

Depreciation 44.59 37.89 
Profit Before Tax before exceptional items 63.50 128.77 
Exceptional items 0 45.68 
Profit Before Tax after exceptional items 63.50 83.09 
Provision for Tax -12.89 49.31 
Profit After Tax 76.39 33.78 

Balance of Profit Brought Forward 425.20 391.42 
Balance available for appropriation 501.59 425.20 
Proposed Dividend on equity shares - - 
Tax on proposed Dividend - - 
Transfer to General Reserve - - 
Surplus carried to next year’s account 501.59 425.20 
Earning Per Share(EPS) -  
Basic 
Diluted 

 
0.69 
0.69 

 
0.31 
0.31 

 
DIVIDEND: 
 
As company required funds for business and growth, no Dividend is recommended for the year under review. 
 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND 
 
The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid last year. 
 
OPERATIONAL REVIEW: 
 
The Turnover for the Financial Year ended on 31/03/2020 is Rs. 14426.71 Lacs as compared to Rs. 25,220.46 Lacs last year. Net 

profit of the company before exceptional items and tax is Rs.63.50 Lacs as compared to Rs. 128.77Lacs last year. The company is 

engaged in marketing business of variety of paper like duplex, kraft, waste paper, art paper, poster paper etc.  

FUTURE PROSPECTS 
 
According to the “Paper Mart (A biomonthly magazine for Paper Industries in India)”, the demand for domestic paper in India 

rose from 9.4 million tonnes in FY08 to 15.4 million tonnes in FY16; and it continues to rise. Besides, the Indian paper and paper 

products market is projected to grow from USD 8.6 billion in 2018 to USD 13.4 billion by 2024, exhibiting a CAGR of 7.8 percent 

during 2019 to 2024.  

Also according to India Paperex, (A Unified Business Platform for Paper Industry) the paper and board industry in India is 

considering this transition phase as a great opportunity coupled with the challenge of providing affordable alternatives. Paper  
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mills are conducting various trials to make paper and paperboard for the intended use, like carrying, wrapping, protecting, packing 

and holding as a container. 

Under the baseline scenario, by 2024-25, domestic consumption is projected to rise to 23.5-million tpa and production to 22.0-

million tpa. About one million tpa of integrated pulp, paper and paperboard capacity is required to be created in India on an annual 

basis over the current capacity to meet the growing demand. 

India is the fastest growing market for paper globally and it presents an exciting scenario; paper consumption is poised for a big 

leap forward in sync with the economic growth. 

The paper imports continue to surge even as domestic paper manufacturers limp back to restart production after the COVID 

outbreak. In a communication to the government, the Indian Paper Manufacturers Association (IPMA) said both inward and 

outward supply chains of the paper industry have been totally disrupted and are yet to recover fully. 

IPMA also mentioned that taking advantage of the situation, import of paper has been rising steadily. The paper imports have risen 

2 percent to Rs. 1,870 crore (Rs. 1,830 crore) in the first 11 months of FY20. Even after the Covid outbreak there in November, 

China has managed to export paper worth Rs. 1,773 crore (Rs.1,831 crore) to India. 

Also the paper cardboard and duplex board are being used for giving facility of temporary beds to the COVID 19 patients, this has 

increased the supply of paper board and its other products. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED 

BETWEEN THE ENDS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 

REPORT 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the ends of the financial 

year to which these financial statements relate on the date of this report. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 

CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and 

company’s operations in future. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexityof its operations. The Internal 

Audit Department monitors andevaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliancewith 

operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company andits subsidiaries. Based on the report of 

internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. 

DEPOSITS 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review. As well as the Company has not taken 
any unsecured loans from promoters/ directors or relatives of promoters during the financial year 2019-20. 
 
AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REPORT:  

 

(a) STATUTORY AUDITOR  

 
M/s. Rajeev Singal & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.008692C) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your 

Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2017, for a term of five consecutive years to hold office from the 

conclusion of the 22ndAnnual General Meeting until the conclusion of 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in  



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 11

the calendar year 2022. As per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Auditors was required 
to be ratified by Members at every Annual General Meeting. 

However, in accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, effective on 7th May, 2018 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting from now onwards.  

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Report. There has been no qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditors in their Reporton the financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2020. 
 

(a) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Shailly Goel & Co., Company Secretaries to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the company for the financial year 2019-20.The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as ‘Annexure I’. 

The Board noted that there is no observation made in the Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended 31st March 2020. 

(b) COST AUDITOR  
 

As your company is trading company & due to non – applicability of section 148 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014, the Company is not required to appoint cost auditor for audit of 
cost records. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As on 31/03/2020, there were no associate companies of the Company. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The paid up equity share capital as on 31/03/2020 was Rs. 11,00,00,000. Further the company has not bought back any of its 

securities, has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares, has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees and no Bonus 

Shares were issued during the year under review. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure II and is attached to this Report and is also 
available on the website of company. 
 
The company has filed its annual return for the financial year ended 31/03/2019& the same has been uploaded on the website of 
the Company under the linkhttps://www.neerajpaper.com/Form_MGT_7.pdf 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 
The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO ETC: 
 
Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required to be disclosed 
under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder: 
 
(A) Conservation of Energy: 
 
 All efforts are made to conserve and optimize use of energy with continuous monitoring and to reduce its electricity consumption 
during the financial year. 
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(B) Technology absorption: 
 
Since the company is involved in the trading activities, no specific expenses are made towards technology absorption during the 
financial year. 
 
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
 
There is Foreign exchange earnings of Rs. 37,90,310.15 (USD 57627.6) during the financial year. However, there was outflow of Rs. 
44,56,208.15/- (USD 68362.48) during the year. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MAGAERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
During the year under review as the term of Mr. Deepak Goel and Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel, holding position of Whole Time Director 
of the Company ended on 1st September 2019, the Board on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
approved and also the members of the Company in Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2019 approved, re appointment 
of Mr. Deepak Goel and Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel as Whole Time Directors of the Company on the terms specified in the resolution. 
 
The first term of Mr. Shubhakar Pathak (DIN: 02371350) and Ms. Sonal (DIN: 06953152), Independent Directors of the Company 
ended on 29th September, 2019. They had expressed their inability to continue as Independent Director for the Second term. 
Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Board at its meeting held on 13th August 
2019, and members of the Company in Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2019 approved, appointment of Ms. Neha 
Agarwal and Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj as Independent Director of the Company, for a term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 30th September, 
2019 to 29th September, 2024.  
 
Also the first term of Mr. Ankur Sangal (DIN: 01095679), Independent Director ended on 29th September, 2019 and he is eligible 
and provided his consent to be reappointed as Independent Director for the second term. Pursuant to the recommendation of 
Nomination And Remuneration Committee, the Board at its meeting held on 13th August 2019, and members of the Company in 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2019 approved, re-appointment of Mr. Ankur Sangal as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation for a second term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 30th 
September, 2019 to 29th September, 2024.  
 
The company had received the declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 
as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Praveen Kumar Goel, 
Executive Director of the Company retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-
appointment. 
 
The Board recommends the resolutions for your approval for the above appointments. . 
 

a) Board Evaluation 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulation, the annual evaluation of the performance of the 
Board, its Committees and of individual directors has been made. The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out has 
been explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

b) Remuneration Policy 
 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and 
appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report.  
 

c) Meetings 
 
During the year five Board Meetings and one independent directors’ meeting was held. The Details of which are given in Corporate 
Governance Report. The provisions of Companies Act,2013 and listing agreement were adhered to while considering the time gap 
between two meetings. 



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 13

VIGIL MECHANISM 

Pursuant to the Listing Regulation and as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has established a vigil 
mechanism/Whistle Blower policy for the directors and employees to report genuine concerns or grievances about unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. 
 
COMMITEES OF THE BOARD 
 
a) AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

From 1st April, 2019 to 30th September 2019, the Audit Committee comprised of the following members: 
 

1. Mr. Ankur Sangal ( Non-Executive Independent Director)   -        Chairman 
2. Mr. Amit Agarwal ( Non-Executive  Director)                           -        Member 
3. Ms. Sonal( Non-Executive Independent Director)                   -        Member 

 
During the year the Audit Committee of the Company reconstituted with the approval of Board in their meeting held on 30th 
September 2019 and as on 31st March 2020 the committee comprised of the following members: 
 
1. Mr. Ankur Sangal ( Non-Executive Independent Director)      -        Chairman 
2.     Mr. Amit Agarwal ( Non-Executive  Director)                          -        Member 
3.     Ms. Neha Agarwal( Non-Executive Independent Director)  -        Member 

 

All the recommendations made by Audit committee were accepted by the Board. 

 

b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 

From 1st April, 2019 to 30th September 2019, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of the following 

members: 

1. Mr. Ankur Sangal (Non- Executive, Independent Director)   -  Chairman  
2. Ms. Sonal  (Non- Executive, Independent Director)                -   Member 
3. Mr. Amit Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)      -  Member 

 
During the year the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company reconstituted with the approval of Board in 
their meeting held on 30th September 2019 and as on 31st March 2020 the committee comprised of the following members: 
 

1. Mr. Ankur Sangal (Non- Executive, Independent Director)        -  Chairman  
2. Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj (Non- Executive, Independent Director)   -   Member 
3. Mr. Amit Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)           -  Member 

 
c) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 
As on 31/03/2020 the committee comprised of the following directors as members:   

 Mr. Amit Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)               -Chairman 

 Mr. Deepak Goel(Whole Time Director)                                     - Member 

 Mr. Ankur Sangal (Non-Executive Independent Director)           - Member 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the 
year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable. 
 
However, detail of guarantees which is outstanding as on 31/03/2020 is provided in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the 
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by 
the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large. 
 
All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for approval. 
 
Policy on Related Party Transactions is uploaded on the Company’s website under the link at 
https://www.neerajpaper.com/POLICY%20FOR%20RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTION-2.pdf 
 
Particulars of contracts or arrangements or transactions in Form AOC-2 are attached as Annexure III. 
 
MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

Disclosure under Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure IV. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
In accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and listing Regulation, the Board members were informed about risk assessment and 
minimization procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk 
management plan for the company. 
 
The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a pro-active approach in 
reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy establishes 
a structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues. 
 
In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of 
the Company are imperative. The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Investments, retention of 
talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. 
 
As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the 
existence of the company. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  

As per Companies Act, 2013, provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the company. 
 
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 
In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that: 
 

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed. 
 

ii) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under review. 

 
iii) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
iv) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 
v) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
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i) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such system were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
During the year, there is no employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits specified under Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made there under. 
 
However, the prescribed information of Employees as required under Section 134(3)(q) read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith as Annexure V. 
 
INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE 
 
The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Committee has been set up to redress 
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under 
this policy. 
 
Further, your Directors state that during the year under review, company has complied with the provisions relating to constitution 
of Internal Complaint Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and there were no cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to the sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS 
 
The Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, which form an integral part of this Report, are set out 
as separate Annexure, together with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the requirements 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulation. 
 
ACKNOWLEGEMENT 
 
Your Directors take this opportunity to convey their deep sense of gratitude for valuable assistance and Co-Operation extended to 
the Company by all valued Customers, Bankers and various departments of government and local authorities. 
Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the valued contribution, unstinted efforts and spirit of 

dedication shown by the employees, officers and the executives at all levels which contributed, in no small measure, to the progress 

and the high performance of the Company during the Year under review. 

thDATED: 4  SEPTEMBER, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  
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PAPER & PAPER PRODUCTS DEMAND  

· Food banks around the world are experiencing dramatic increases in demand for food assistance driven by the economic 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Now, more than ever, food banks need support. Paper Industry is responding with its 
essential products —like corrugated boxes.  
 

· India's share in the demand for paper across the globe were analysed is growing, as the domestic demand is increasing at a 
steady pace, while the demand in western nations is shrinking. Despite the continuous growth in the industry, per capita 
paper consumption in the country stands at a little over 14 kg, which is still well below the global average of 57 kg and 
considerably below 200 kg in North America. 
 

· The Indian paper & paper products market is projected to grow from $ 8.6 billion in 2018 to $ 13.4 billion by 2024, exhibiting 
a CAGR of 7.8% during 2019-2024. 
 

· Growing manufacturing sector, requirement of better quality packaging of FMCG products marketed through organized 
retail and the demand for the upstream market of paper products, such as tissue paper, filter paper, tea bags, light weight 
online coated paper and medical grade coated paper are expected to drive the paper & paper products market in India in 
coming years.  

 
The Indian paper & paper products market has been segmented into raw material, application and region. Based on raw material, 
the market has been categorized into waste & recycled paper, wood and agro residue. The waste & recycled paper segment is 
expected to dominate the market during forecast period, owing to growing concerns about the cutting down of trees for producing 
pulp. Further, based on application, the market has been bifurcated into writing & printing paper, paperboard & packaging, 
newsprint and specialty paper. 

 
Among the application segments, the demand for paperboard & packaging is growing at the fastest pace, as paperboard & packaging 
caters to industries including FMCG, food & beverages, textiles and pharmaceutical. The segment is also expected to dominate the 
market, owing to factors such as rising urbanization, increasing preference for ready-to-eat foods and requirement of better-quality 
packaging of FMCG products marketed through organized retail. 
 
The paper & paper products market in India has been segmented into North, South, East and West. Western region is the lead 
consumer of paper & paper products across the country, on account of increasing paper consumption, especially FMCG products.  
 
The paper mills use a variety of raw materials such as wood, bamboo, bagasse, recycled fiber, wheat straw, rice and husk. The 
geographical location of the mill often determines the type of raw material used. Most mills in the northern and western regions of 
India depend heavily on agricultural residues and wastepaper as their raw material. While pulp & paper production in southern 
and eastern regions use wood and bamboo as raw materials. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 
The competitive strengths and the opportunities that are available to the Indian Paper Industry are: 
 

· It is large and growing domestic paper market and potential for export. 
 

· fast growing contemporary printing sector. 
 

· Government’s thrust for improving education and literacy in the Country.  
 

· availability of qualified technical manpower with capability to design, build and manage world scale pulp and paper mills. 
 

· well established Research and Development (R & D) facilities / activities encouraging innovation. 
 

· potential for creation of sustainable raw material base through farm plantations. 
 

THREAT: 

 
· There are no threats anticipated towards our business being trading business of paper except competition. 
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SEGMENT -WISE /PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

Company is engaged in trading of paper and waste paper. During the year–2019-20, turnover of Paper, Paper Board and Other Paper 

items contributed in the gross turnover of the Company which is as follows: 

 

OUTLOOK 

The company utilized the total capital arranged. In addition to the core paper trading, the company always trying to explore the 

opportunities in those sector where the company can increase the value of stakeholders. Paper, Paper Board and Other Paper items 

contributed 100% in the gross turnover of the Company. 

RISKS AND CONCERN 

An integrated risk management process is being adopted by the company that works towards the evaluation of the associated 

business risk and enables the company to survive in the competitive environment. In today’s challenging and competitive 

environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The 

common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. 

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk.As a matter of policy, these risks are 

assessed and the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The Internal 
Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with 
operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and its subsidiaries. Based on the report of 
internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. 
 

The Audit Committee of the company also reviews the internal control system prevalent at each level of the organization and passes 

on its recommendation to the management in respect of the areas, which requires the correction. 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial and operative performance is already elaborated in Directors Report. 

Revenue from products 
S.No Products Total(in Rs.) 

1 Duplex 
573172288.1 

2 Kraft Paper 
620695544.68 

3 Paper Waste 
117950245.07 

4 Bindal Fine Print 
30354480.05 

5 Art Paper 
1420762.15 

6 Poster Paper 
39025220.4 

7 Others 
25097708.1 
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HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The company continuously works on the development of the employees at various levels. The management makes sure that the 
employee morale and dedication remains high and that they contribute their fullest and best to the organization. The recreational 
activities like seminars/vacations are planned for the employees at regular intervals. As on 31/03/2020, the Company has 23 
employees. Industrial relations are cordial and satisfactory. 
 
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 
 
The details of changes in Key Financial Ratios as compared to the immediately previous financial year along with explanations are 
as follows: 

 

Nature of Ratios For year 
ended 31st 
March 2020 

For year
ended 31st 
March 2019 
 

Changes% Explanation for the changes more than 25% 

Debtors Turnover 
 

2.37 3.34 -29.04 Debtors Turnover has improved on account of better 
realization from debtors. Management has giving 
upmost importance on timely realization from debtors 
and accordingly debtors turnover is improving. 

Inventory 
Turnover 
 

123.17 34.70 254.97 Inventory Turnover is high as at 31.03.2020 against 
31.03.2019, because of better management of inventory. 
Inventory as at 31.03.2020 was Nil as against Rs.234.25 
lacs as at 31.03.2019, on account of reduction of 
inventory, inventory turnover ratio has increased. 

Interest Coverage 
Ratio 
 

1.29 1.16 11.20 NA 

Current Ratio 
 

1.67 1.52 9.86 NA 

Debt Equity Ratio 
 

0.97 0.98 -1.02 NA 

Operating Profit 
Margin % 
 

0.44 0.51 -13.73 NA 

Net Profit Margin 
% 
 

0.59 0.12 391.67 Net profit of the company has increased from 31.07 Lacs 
to 84.89 Lacs as at 31.03.2020. Increase in profits is on 
account of reduction in debts and accordingly lower 
interest payment. Further exceptional items of expenses 
are also not there as at 31.03.2020 in comparison to 
31.03.2019, due to which profits are higher as at 
31.03.2020 and accordingly higher net profit margin. 

 
 
CHANGES IN RETURN ON NET WORTH 
 
The return on net worth for the financial year 2018-19 and for the financial year 2019-20, it is 1.27 and 3.36 respectively. The 
change in return on net worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year is 164.57% and reason for change in the 
above is lower interest cost and also exceptional items of expenses are also not there as at 31.03.2020 in comparison to 
31.03.2019. Further management has focused on trading of higher margin products rather than volume and hence inspite of 
decrease in sales profits of the company has increased significantly. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis and in the Directors’ Report, describing the company’s objectives, 
projections and estimates, results may vary materially from those expressed or implied by the forward looking statements due to 
risks or uncertainties associated therewith depending upon economic conditions, government policies and other incidental 
factors. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. 
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Annexure I to Board Report 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]  

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 

for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 

that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter:  

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Neeraj Paper 

Marketing Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:  

 

(i). Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 
 

(ii). The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder. 
 

(iii). The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.  
 

(iv). Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB). Not Applicable during the Audit 
period 

 
(v). The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):-  
 
(i). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

(ii). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. 

(iii). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009. 

Not Applicable during the Audit period           

(iv). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. Not Applicable during the Audit period                                                        

(v). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.  Not 

Applicable during the Audit period 

(vi). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.       

(vii). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009. Not Applicable during 

the Audit period 

(viii). The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998. Not Applicable during the 

Audit period 
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In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied on the representation made by the Company and its 
Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations 
to the Company and the reporting is limited to that extent. As per the information, the following other laws are specifically 
applicable to the company: 
 

i) Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to employees appointed by the Company on its payroll as related to 
gratuity, provident fund, ESIC etc.; 

ii) Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and Indirect Tax 
 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

i. Secretarial Standards on Meetings of Board of directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India. 

 

ii. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

 

iii. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above.  The company is listed with BSE Limited under Trade–for-Trade segment since 100% 

Promoter Shareholding and 50% of Public Shareholding of the company is not in demat Form.  

 

We further report that: 

 

(i).   The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act, 

 

(ii).   Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 

minutes  

 

We further report that based on the information received and records maintained by the Company, there are adequate systems 

and processes in the Company, commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period there has not been any such activity having a major bearing on the Company’s 

affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 

For Shailly Goel & Co.  
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

Sd/- 
Shailly Goel 

Company Secretary 

FCS No: 8769 

C.P.  No.: 9196 
 

Date: 28th August, 2020 

Place:  New Delhi 

UDIN: F008769B000628388  
 

Note: This report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms integral part of this report. 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 

 
 
To,  
 
The Members, 
NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED 
218-222, Agarwal Prestige Mall, 
2nd Floor, Community Centre,  
Along Road No. 44, Pitampura, 
Delhi- 110034 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. 
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of event etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

For Shailly Goel & Co.  
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

Sd/- 
Shailly Goel 

Company Secretary 

FCS No: 8769 

C.P.  No.: 9196 
 

Date: 28th August, 2020  

Place:  New Delhi 
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Annexure II to Board Report 
FORM NO. MGT 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 

As on financial year ended on 31/03/2020 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company  

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 
 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 

1.  CIN L74899DL1995PLC066194 

2.  Registration Date 09.03.1995 

3.  Name of the Company NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED 

4.  Category/Sub-category of the Company PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY 

5.  Address of the Registered office  & contact 

details 

218-222,AGGARWAL PRESTIGE MALL, 

PLOT NO. 2, COMMUNITY CENTER, 

ALONG ROAD NO. 44, PITAMPURA, DELHI – 110034 

TEL – 011-47527700, FAX – 011-47527777 

6.  Whether listed company YES 

7.  Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any 

BEETAL FINANCIAL & COMPUTER SERVICES PVT.LTD. 

BEETAL HOUSE, 3RD FLOOR, 99, MADANGIR, DELHI – 110062 

TEL – 011-29961281-82, FAX – 011-29961284 

 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the 

total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

 

S. 

No. 

Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

 

 

%  to total turnover of the 

company 

1 Trading & Marketing of Paper  46696 100% 

 

    III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - 

S.  
N0  

Name and Address of the 
Company  
 

CIN/GLN  
 

Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

% of shares held  
 

Applicable 
Section  
 

- - - - - - 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
 
i) Category-wise Share Holding 

 
Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31-March-2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As 
on 31-March-2020] 

% 
Cha
nge 
duri
ng 
the 

year     

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters / 
Promoter Group 

                  

(1) Indian 
         

a) Individual/ HUF 1046400 17000 1063400 9.67 1046400 17000 1063400 9.67 - 

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies Corp. 1998304 0 1998304 18.17 1998183 0 1998183 18.16 -0.01 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (A)(1):- 3044704 17000 3061704 27.84 3044583 17000 3061583 27.83 -0.01 

(2) Foreign 
         

a) NRI-Individuals 
- - - - 

- - - - 
- 

b)Other-Individuals 
- - - - 

- - - - 
- 

c)Bodies Corp. 
- - - - 

- - - - 
- 

d)Bank/FI 
- - - - 

- - - - 
- 

e)Any Other... 
- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (A)(2) 
- - - - - - - - - 

Total shareholding 

of Promoter(A) = 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

3044704 17000 3061704 27.84 3044583 17000 3061583 27.83 -0.01 

B. Public 

Shareholding 

        

 
1. Institutions - - - - - - - - 

- 
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - 

- 
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - 

- 
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - 

- 
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - 

- 
e) Venture Capital 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - 

- 
f) Insurance 

Companies 

- - - - - - - - 

- 
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Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31-March-2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As 
on 31-March-2020] 

% 
Cha
nge 
duri
ng 
the 

year     

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - 
- 

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - 

- 
i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - 

- 
Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - - 

- 
2. Non-Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 
i) Indian 1562 5958700 5960262 54.18 10 5958700 5958710 54.17 -0.01 

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 
b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
i) Individual 
shareholders 

holding nominal 
share capital upto 

Rs. 1 lakh 

59014 1697304 1756318 15.96 55310 1692004 1747314 15.88 -0.08 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 

holding nominal 
share capital in 

excess of Rs 1 lakh 

15421 196400 211821 1.92 27277 196400 223677 2.03 0.11 

c) Others (specify) 
HUF 

9895 - 9895 0.09 8716 - 8716 0.07 -0.02 

Non Resident 
Indians 

         

Overseas Corporate 
Bodies 

         

Foreign Nationals          

Clearing Members          

Trusts          

Foreign Bodies - D R          

Sub-total (B)(2):- 85892 7852404 7938296 72.16 91313 7847104 7938417 72.17 0.01 

Total Public 
Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

85892 7852404 7938296 72.16 91313 7847104 7938417 72.17 0.01 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

- - - -     - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

3130596 7869404 11000000 100 3135896 7864104 11000000 100 - 
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i) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group:- 
 

SN Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (31/03/2019) 

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(31/03/2020) 

% 
change in 
sharehol
ding 
during 
the year 

  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbere
d to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

1 NeerajGoel 336500 3.06 Nil 336500 3.06 Nil - 
2 Deepak Goel 11000 0.1 Nil 11000 0.1 Nil - 
3 Praveen Kumar 

Goel 117000 1.06 Nil 117000 1.06 Nil 
- 

4 MadhulikaGoel 275500 2.5 Nil 275500 2.5 Nil - 
5 PankajGoel 16500 0.15 Nil 16500 0.15 Nil - 

6 MukeshGoel 17000 0.15 Nil 17000 0.15 Nil - 

7 Ambuj Kumar Goel 17500 0.16 Nil 17500 0.16 Nil - 

8 PoonamGoel 38200 0.35 Nil 38200 0.35 Nil - 

9 NutanGoel 76500 0.70 Nil 76500 0.70 Nil - 

10 
 

RadhikaGoel 75800 0.69 Nil 75800 0.69 Nil - 

11 IshitaGoel 1800 0.02 Nil 1800 0.02 Nil - 

12 ChiragGoel 37900 0.34 Nil 37900 0.34 Nil - 

13 ManikaGoel 1500 0.01 Nil 1500 0.01 Nil - 

14 ToshikaGoel 3500 0.03 Nil 3500 0.03 Nil - 

15 TanviGoel 3400 0.03 Nil 3400 0.03 Nil - 

16 

Deepak Goel& Sons 

16800 0.15 Nil 16800 0.15 Nil - 

17 KamlaGoel& Sons 
(HUF) 

17000 0.15 Nil 17000 0.15 Nil - 

18 Bindal Pulp & 
Paper Pvt. Ltd. 

226725 2.07 Nil 226604 2.06 Nil -0.01 

19 BrinaGopal 
Traders Pvt. Ltd. 

279029 2.54 Nil 279029 2.54 Nil - 

20 SwabhimanVyapaa
rPvt. Ltd. 

500000 4.55 Nil 500000 4.55 Nil - 

21 

V.R. Digital Pvt.Ltd. 

284657 2.59 Nil 284657 2.59 Nil - 

22 Bindals Papers 
Mills Limited 

707893 6.44 Nil 707893 6.44 Nil - 

 

Total 3061704 27.84 Nil 

306158

3 27.83 Nil 

-0.01 
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

SN Particulars Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year 3061704 27.84 3061583 27.83 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 

/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

 

Decrease in shareholding by transfer of shares by121 shares 

on11th October 2019 

 At the end of the year 3061583 27.83 3061583 27.83 

 

 

iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:  

     (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 

SN For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 

beginning 

of the year 

Shareholding at the 

end 

of the year 

Date wise

Increase /

Decrease in 

Promoters 

Shareholding 

during the year  

Cumulative 

Shareholding 

during the 

Year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

 No. of 

shares 

% of 

total 

shares of 

the 

company 

1. Sundeep Credit Pvt. Ltd. 500000 4.55 500000 4.55 No Change 500000 4.55 

2. Alankrit Retails Pvt. Ltd. 500000 4.55 500000 4.55 No Change 500000 4.55 

3. Phoenix Consumer 

Goods Pvt. Ltd. 

420000 3.82 420000 3.82 No Change 420000 3.82 

4. Petals Packing Pvt. Ltd. 400000 3.64 400000 3.64 No Change 400000 3.64 

5. Symbolic Finance & 

Investment Pvt. Ltd. 

400000 3.64 400000 3.64 No Change 400000 3.64 

6. Ram Alloy Castings Pvt. 

Ltd. 

400000 3.64 400000 3.64 No Change 400000 3.64 

7. Vibgyor Contractors Pvt. 

Ltd. 

357100 3.25 357100 3.25 No Change 357100 3.25 

8. Binshul Garments Pvt. 

Ltd. 

340000 3.09 340000 3.09 No Change 340000 3.09 

9. KaavyaNuture Care Pvt 

Ltd 

300000 2.73 300000 2.73 No Change 300000 2.73 

10

. 

BluestarImpexPvt. Ltd. 300000 2.73 300000 2.73 No Change 300000 2.73 
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

SN Shareholding of 

each Directors and 

each Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year 

Date wise 

Increase / 

Decrease in 

Promoters 

Shareholding 

during the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the Year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

 No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

1. 

 

Deepak Goel (WTD) 11000 0.10 11000 0.10 No Change 11000 0.10 

2. Praveen Kumar Goel 

(WTD) 

117000 1.06 117000 1.06 No Change 117000 1.06 

3. AmitAgarwal (Non-

ExeDir) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A NIL NIL 

4. NehaAgarwal(Indp. 

Dir) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A NIL NIL 

5. AnkurSangal (Indp. 

Dir) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A NIL NIL 

6. PoojaBhardwaj 

(Indp. Dir) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A NIL NIL 

7 

 

Vipin Kumar Goel 

(CFO) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A NIL NIL 

8. Mansi (CS) NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A NIL NIL 

 
V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment: 

(In Lacs) 

  

Secured 

Loans 

excluding 

deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year         

i) Principal Amount 1796.84 398.93 - 2195.77 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 1796.84 398.93 - 2195.77 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year     

* Addition 98.06 - - 98.06 

* Reduction - 36.22 - 36.22 

Net Change 98.06 36.22 - 61.84 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year     

i) Principal Amount 1894.90 362.71 - 2257.61 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 1894.90 362.71 - 2257.61 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

    Deepak Goel 

(WTD) 

Praveen Kumar 

Goel (WTD) 

  

1 Gross salary     -  

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

 1800000 1800000 3600000 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

tax Act, 1961 

 -  -  - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 

17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

 -  -  - 

2 Stock Option  -  -  - 

3 Sweat Equity  -  -  - 

4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 

-  others, specify… 

  

  

 -  -  - 

5 Others, please specify 

  

  

 - -   - 

  Total (A) 

  

  

 1800000 1800000   3600000 

 Ceiling as per the Act under Schedule V is Rs. 84,00,000/- for one managerial personnel 

 

B.Remuneration to other directors 
 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration   Name of Directors Total 

Amount 

    Amit 

Agarwal 

Shubhakar 

Pathak 

Neha 

Agarwal 

Pooja 

Bhardwaj 

Ankur 

Sangal 

Sonal   

1 Independent Directors  -  -         

Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

 - 5000 30000 20000 25000 5000 85000 

Commission  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Others, please specify  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (1)  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Fee for attending board 

committee meetings  

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Commission  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Others, please specify  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

  Total (2)  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

  Total (B)=(1+2)  -  5000 30000 20000 25000  5000 85000 

  

Total Managerial 

Remuneration* 

    

   

   Overall Ceiling as per the Act is Rs. 100,000 per meeting attendance fees  

 

* Total Managerial Remuneration is Total of A 

 



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 30

C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel (Annual) 

    CS CFO Total 

1 Gross salary 350000 625000 975000 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961 

 -  - -  

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

 -  -  - 

2 Stock Option  -  -  - 

3 Sweat Equity  -  -  - 

4 Commission  -  -  - 

  -  as % of profit  -  -  - 

  Others specify…  -  -  - 

5 Others, please specify  - -   - 

  Total 350000 625000 975000 

 
 
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal made, 
if any (give Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty   
 NIL 
  
  
   

Punishment 

Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty   
  

Punishment NIL 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty   
   
 NIL 
  

Punishment 

Compounding 

 

thDATED: 4  SEPTEMBER, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  
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Annexure III to Board  Report 
 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 
 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub 
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 
 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March 31, 2020, which were not at arm’s 
length basis. 
 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 
 

Name of Related 
Party 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of Transaction  Duration of 
Transaction 

Salient terms of 
transaction 

Amount 
(In Lacs) 

Mr.  Deepak Goel 
 
 

Director  Director Remuneration From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 18.00 
Unsecured Loan Paid 20 
Amount Receivable 7.45 

Mr. Praveen 
Kumar Goel 

Director Director Remuneration  
 

From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

 
- 
 

18.00 
 

Amount Payable 0.28 
Mr. Pankaj Goel Relative of 

Director 
Salary From 01/04/2019 

to 31/03/2020 
 
 
- 
 

6.60 
 

Amount Receivable 3.93 

Mr. Vipin Kumar 
Goel (CFO) 

Relative of 
Director 

Salary From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

 
- 

6.25 
 

Mr. Shubhakar 
Pathak 

Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees From 01/04/2019 
to 30/09/2019 

- 0.05 

Ms. Sonal Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees From 01/04/2019 
to 30/09/2019 

- 0.05 

Mr. Ankur Sangal Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 
 

0.25 

Ms. Pooja 
Bhardwaj 

Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees From 30/09/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 0.20 

Ms. Neha Agarwal Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees From 30/09/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 0.30 

Ms. Mansi Company 
Secretary 

Salary From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 3.50 
Amount Payable 0.03 

Ms. Ishita Goel Relative of 
Director 

Unsecured Loan Received  From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 0.07 
Unsecured Loan Paid 0.07 

Mr. Chirag Goel Relative of 
Director 

Unsecured Loan Received From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 1.26 
Unsecured Loan Paid 1.26 

Mrs. Nutan Goel Relative of 
Director 

Unsecured Loan Paid From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 1.51 
Unsecured Loan Received 0.08 
Amount Payable 1.43 

Mrs. Radhika Goel Relative of 
Director 

Amount Paid From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 1.28 
Amount Received  0.09 
Amount Receivable 1.19 

Mr. Himanshu 
Goel 

Relative of 
CFO 

Sale of Vehicle From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 0.14 
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Name of Related 
Party 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of Transaction  Duration of 
Transaction 

Salient terms of 
transaction 

Amount 
(In Lacs) 

ACS Paper India 
Private Limited 

Director is 
Member 
 

Purchases From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 139.84 
Sales 83.67 
Amount Receivable 9.95 

Deepak Goel & 
Sons 
 
 

Member of 
HUF are 
relatives of 
Director 

Amount Paid From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 2.12 
Amount Received 2.12 

Kamla Goel & 
Sons 

Member of 
HUF are 
relatives of 
Director 

Amount Paid From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 1.46 
Amount Received 1.46 

Pankaj Goel & 
Sons 

Member of 
HUF are 
relatives of 
Director 

Amount Paid From 01/04/2019 
to 31/03/2020 

- 2.08 
Amount Received 2.08 

thDATED: 4  SEPTEMBER, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  
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Annexure IV to Board report 

Disclosure in the Board’s Report under Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2016 

(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
median remuneration of theemployees of the 
company for the financial year 2019-20 

Director’s Name Ratio to median 
remuneration (As on 
31/03/2020) 

  Deepak Goel 5.97:1 

  Praveen Kumar Goel 5.97:1 

(ii) The Percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year 2019-20 compared to 2018-19 

 
Director’s/CFO/CS  name 

Percentage increase in 
remuneration 
 

 
  Deepak Goel, WTD No change 

  Praveen Kumar Goel, WTD No change 

  Vipin Kumar Goel, CFO No change 

  Mansi (CS) No change 

(iii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year 2019-20 compared to 
2018-19* 

 
-3.44% 

(iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the 
company*** 

As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019 

  23 30 

(v) Average percentile increase in salaries of Employees 
other than managerial personnel in 2019-20 
compared to 2018-19** 

 
-12.73% 

 Average percentile increase in managerial 
remuneration in 2019-20 

Nil 

 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per 
theremuneration policy of the company. 

It is hereby affirmed that remuneration paid is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company 

* Remuneration of employees as on 31/03/2020 and 31/03/2019. 
**Average percentile increase in salaries has been considered on annual basis. Due to reduction in employees the amount of salary 
disbursed has decreased during the year. 
***Total employees excludes directors of the company 

thDATED: 4  SEPTEMBER, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 
The Company believes that Corporate Governance is a set of processes, customs, policies, rules, regulation and laws for 
ensuring transparency, professionalism and accountability in its dealings with its customers, principal, employees, 
shareholders and with every individual who comes in contact with the Company. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate 
Governance is bounded upon a rich legacy of fair ethical governance practices which has been in practice since the 
beginning. Integrity, transparency, accountability and compliance with laws which are columns of good governance have 
always been the hallmark of company. The Company is in full compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance 
under Listing Regulation entered into with the Stock Exchanges and in this regard, submits a report on the matters 
mentioned in the said regulation and also the practices followed by the Company as stated below: 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Board of Directors of the company review the strategic policies and confirm that they are implemented in the manner 
that is acceptable in terms of the regulations of the country and enhances the shareholder’s value and the confidence of the 
outside parties relating to the company. 
 
The agenda papers for the meetings of the Board of Directors are circulated to Board members within the reasonable time 
period. 

Composition of the Board & their Responsibility 

The board of the Company consists of 6 Directors- Four Non- Executive Directors & Two Executive Directors, of whom 
three are Independent Directors out of whom one independent Woman Director. The directors bring to the board wide 
range of experience and skills. The category, composition, attendance of each director at the Board Meeting, Last Annual 
General Meeting and the number of other directorship and chairmanship/Membership of committees of each Director in 
various companies as on 31st March, 2020 is given hereunder. 
 

Name of Director Category Board 
Meeting 
attended 
during 
the year 
2019-20 

Attend
ance at 
the 
last 
AGM  

No. of
Directorship 
held as on 
31/03/2020 in 
other Public 
and Private 
Limited 
Companies  

No. of Committee 
Memberships, in other 
companies as on 
31/03/2020 
As 
Chairman  

As Member 

Mr. Deepak Goel Executive Director 
(Whole Time Director) 
 

5 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Praveen Kumar 
Goel 
 

Executive Director 
(Whole Time Director) 

5 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Amit Agarwal Non-Executive Non 
Independent Director 

4 Yes 5 Nil Nil 

Mr. Ankur Sangal Non-Executive 
Independent Director  

4 Yes 6 1 1 

Mr. Shubhakar 
Pathak 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

2 No Nil 
 

Nil Nil 

Ms. Sonal Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

2 No Nil Nil Nil 

Ms. Neha Agarwal* Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

3 Yes 2 Nil 4 

Ms. Pooja
Bhardwaj* 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

2 Yes 1 Nil 1 

 
*Ms. Neha Agarwal and Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj, Independent Directors of the Company appointed in AGM held on 30th 
September 2019 in place of Mr. Shubhakar Pathak and Ms. Sonal. 
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The names of the other listed entities where directors of the Company are directors are as follows: 
 

Name of Director Name of other listed 
entities 

Category of
Directorship 

Member/Chairman in Committees of 
Board in other listed entities 

Mr. Deepak Goel Nil Nil Nil 
 

Mr. Praveen Kumar Goel 
 

Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Amit Agarwal Nil Nil Nil 
 

Mr. Ankur Sangal Agarwal Duplex Board 
Mills Limited 

Non Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Audit Committee- Chairman 
Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee- Member 
 

Mr. Shubhakar Pathak Nil Nil Nil 
Ms. Sonal Nil Nil Nil 

 
Ms. Neha Agarwal* Nil Nil Nil 
Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj* Agarwal Duplex Board 

Mills Limited 
Non Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee- Member 
 

*Ms. Neha Agarwal and Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj, Independent Directors of the Company appointed in AGM held on 30th 
September 2019 in place of Mr. Shubhakar Pathak and Ms. Sonal. 
 
Note: 
 

a) Board of director of company comprises of 6 directors out of which 2 are executive and other 4 are non 
executive three of whom are non executive independent Directors. 

 
b) Number of other directorships/committee membership/ chairmanship indicated above is exclusive of 

directorships, committee membership and chairmanship in Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited. 
 

c) None of the Directors of the Company are related to each other. 
 
 
No. of Board Meetings Held with Dates 
 
During the financial year 2019-20, the Board of Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited had met 5 times.  

       The dates of the meeting are: 

30/05/2019, 13/08/2019, 30/09/2019, 13/11/2019, 14/02/2020 

Independent Directors 

The Company has complied with the definition of Independence as per Listing Regulation and according to the Provisions 
of section 149(6) Companies Act, 2013. The company has also obtained declarations from all the Independent Directors 
pursuant to section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
On the basis of declarations/certificates received, the board confirms that in its opinion, the Independent Directors fulfil 
the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are 
independent of the Management. 
 
 
Training of Independent Directors 
 
Whenever new Non-executive and Independent Directors are inducted in the Board they are introduced to our Company’s 
culture through appropriate orientation session and they are also introduced to our organization structure, our business, 
constitution, board procedures, our major risks and management strategy. 
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The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors have been placed on the Company’s website at 
http://www.neerajpaper.com/index.php?page=code_conduct .  
 
 
Performance Evaluation of non-executive and Independent Directors 
 
The Board evaluates the performance of Non-executive and Independent Directors every year. All the Non-executive and 
Independent Directors are eminent personalities having wide experience in the field of business, industry and 
administration. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors. The framework of performance evaluation of the Independent Directors will capture the following 
points: 
 

A) Key attributes of the IDs that justify his / her extension / continuation on the Board of the Company; 
 

B) Participation of the Directors in the Board proceedings and his / her effectiveness; 
 
The assessment to determine the key attributes of the Directors should cover the following: 
 
Relevant experience and skills: 

- ability and willingness to speak up 

- ability to carry others 

- ability to disagree, stand his/her ground 
 
The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the director being 

evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the 

Independent Directors. The board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination 

and Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 

evaluation process. 

A structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the 

Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance was 

prepared after taking into consideration the Guidance note issued by SEBI vide circular no, CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated 

05.01.2017. 

 
Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors: 
 
The Independent Directors held a Meeting on 10th February 2020without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and 
members of Management. All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. The following issues were discussed 
in detail: 
 

1. Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 
 

2. Reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 

 
3. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the 

Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 
 
Familiarization programme for Independent Directors  

The company has formulated a policy to familiarize the independent directors with the company, their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model of the company, etc., 
through various programmes. The details of such familiarization programmes are disclosed in the website of the company 
at thehttp://www.neerajpaper.com/index.php?page=code_conduct . 
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CORE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES IDENTIFIED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Board is skill-based comprising of directors who collectively have the skills, knowledge and competencies to effectively 
govern and direct the organization. 
 
The following is the list of core skills / expertise /competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context 
of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available with the Board Members: 
 

i) Knowledge on Company’s businesses (Paper and Paper products), policies and culture (including the Mission, 
Vision and Values) major risks / threats and potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which 
the Company operates 
 

ii) Behavioral skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the 
growth of the Company in the market 

 

iii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Administration, Decision Making, 
 

iv) Financial and Management skills 
 

v) Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business 
 

 
Details of Directors having core skills, knowledge and competencies: 

Name of Directors- Mr. 

Deepak 

Goel 

Mr. Praveen 

Kumar Goel 

Mr. Ankur 

Sangal 

Mr. Amit 

Agarwal 

Ms. Neha 

Agarwal 

Ms. Pooja 

Bhardwaj 

Skills and Competencies  

Business Strategy, Sales & 

Marketing 

      

Finance and Accounting 

Experience 

      

Technical and Professional 

Skills 

      

Knowledge of Industry and 

its potential opportunities 

      

Leadership Experience       

 

Non-Executive director’s compensation and disclosure 

During the year the company has paid sitting fees of Rs. 2,500/- per meeting for first two meetings and afterwards Board in 

the meeting held on 30th September 2019 approved the enhancement of sitting fees upto Rs. 10,000/- per meeting to Non-

Executive director’s for attending the Board Meetings during the financial year 2019-20. No other remuneration has been 

provided to the non-executive directors. 

Meetings of the Board 
 
Frequency: The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items of the Agenda. Whenever 
necessary, additional meetings are held. In case of business exigencies or urgency of matters, resolutions are passed by 
circulations, as permitted by law, which is confirmed in the next Board Meeting.  
 
 
Meetings Calendar: The probable dates of the Board / Committee Meetings for the forthcoming year are decided well in 
advance in order to facilitate and assist the Directors to plan their schedules for the Meetings.  
 
Board Meeting Location: The locations of the Board / Committee Meetings are informed well in advance to all the Directors. 
Each Director is expected to attend the Board / Committee Meetings. 

ü

ü

ü

ü
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ü
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Information Supplied to the Board / Committees: 
 
Among others, information supplied to the Board / Committees includes: 
 
_ Annual operating plans of businesses and budgets and any update thereof. 
 
_ Capital budgets and any updates thereof. 
 
_ Quarterly results of the Company and its operating divisions or business segment. 
 
_ Minutes of the Meetings of the audit committee and all other Committees of the Board. 
 
_ The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board level, including the appointment 

or removal, if any, of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. 
 
_ Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important. 
 
_ Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems. 
 
_ Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial non-payment for goods sold by the 
Company. 
 
_ Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any judgment or order, 
which may have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise 
that can have negative implications on the Company. 
 
_ Transactions that involve substantial payment towards royalty, goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property. 
 
_Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions.Any significant development in human resources / industrial 
relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of voluntary retirement scheme etc. 
 
_ Sale of investment, subsidiaries,assests which are material in nature and not in normal course of  business. 
 
_ Making of loans and investments of surplus funds. 
 
_ General notices of interests of Directors.  
 
_ Formation / Reconstitution of Board Committees. 
 
_ Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors. 
 
_ Dividend declaration, if any. 
 
_ Significant changes in accounting policies and internal controls. 
 
_ Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.  
 
_ Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit of adverse exchange rate 
movement, if material. 
 
_ Non –compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and shareholders' service, such as non-
payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc. 
 
_ Declarations submitted by Independent Directors at the time of appointment and also annually. 
 
_ Appointment of and fixing of remuneration of the Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee. 
 
_ Annual financial results of the Company, Auditors' Report, Director’s Report, Corporate Governance Report etc. 
 
_ Compliance Certificates for all the laws as applicable to the Company. 



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 40

Code of Conduct 

The Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel (it includes all members of core management 

team one level below the executive Directors and all the functional heads,) of Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited. (Hereinafter 

referred to as “the Company”) in compliance with the provisions of Listing Regulations entered into by the Company with 

the Stock Exchanges. 

This Code seeks to provide guidance to the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel to manage the affair of 

the Company with: 

a) Honest, fair and ethical conduct, 
b) Confidentiality of Information, 
c) Ethical handling of conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships, 
d) Legal Compliance, 
e) Protection and Proper Use of Corporate assets and resources, 
f) The internal reporting to appropriate person or persons identified below of violations of this Code, 
g) Accountability for Adherence to this Code. 
 
Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel must conduct themselves accordingly and not to indulge in improper behavior 
or moral turpitude. All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of 
conduct. A declaration signed by the Chairman of the Company to this effect is contained at the end of this report. The code 
of conduct is also posted on the company’s website at http://www.neerajpaper.com/index.php?page=code_conduct . 
 
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As on 31st March, 2020, the Company has three committees: 
 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
3. Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 
 All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference 
for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of these committees, 
including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided below. Further, 
composition of various committees constituted in the company are also posted on the company’s website at 
https://www.neerajpaper.com/comp-sebi.pdf 
 
1.  AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
i) Terms of Reference 

 
The Powers and the role of the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines provided in the Listing Regulation and 
Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013, which inter-alias include the overview of Company’s Financial reporting 
process, review of quarterly, half yearly and Annual financial statements, adequacy of internal control, review of 
related party transactions etc. It also reviews major accounting policies followed by the company. 
 

ii)   Composition 
 
From 1st April, 2019 to 30th September 2019, the Audit Committee comprised of the following members: 
 

1. Mr. Ankur Sangal( Non-Executive Independent Director)  -  Chairman 
2. Mr. Amit Agarwal( Non-Executive  Director)   -   Member 
3. Ms. Sonal( Non-Executive Independent Director)                     -    Member 

 
During the year the Audit Committee of the Company reconstituted with the approval of Board in their meeting held 
on 30th September 2019 and the reconstitution comprised of the following members: 
 
1. Mr. Ankur Sangal ( Non-Executive Independent Director)      -        Chairman 
2. Mr. Amit Agarwal ( Non-Executive  Director)                           -        Member 
3. Ms. Neha Agarwal( Non-Executive Independent Director)     -        Member 
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iii) Meetings and Attendance during the year: 
  
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the audit committee has met 4 times:  

30/05/2019, 13/08/2019, 13/11/2019, 14/02/2020.  

Attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2020is as follows: 

Director Category No. of Meetings Held Attended                                      

Mr Ankur Sangal Chairman 4 4 

Mr. Amit Agarwal Member 4 4 

Ms. Sonal Member 2 2 

Ms. Neha  Agarwal* Member 2 2 

*Ms. Neha Agarwal appointed as member on 30th September 2020. 
 
iv)Power and Role of Audit committee 
 
The role of the audit committee includes of the following: 

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that 
the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 
 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission 
to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements 

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 

g.   Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report 

 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval; 
 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 
matter; 

 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems; 
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13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit; 

 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the board; 

 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 
 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate; 

 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee. 
 

21. To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary 
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / 
advances / investments.* 

 

A.  The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 
 
1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations 
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by 

management;  
3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
4. Internal audit report relating to internal control weaknesses;  
5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by 

audit committee. 
6. Statement of deviations: 

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock 
exchange (s)in terms of Regulation 32(1). 

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 
prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 
2. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
i) Terms of Reference 

The primary purpose of the Committee, among other things, is to determine and propose the following for Board's 

approval:- 

a) identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
positions in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal; 

b) carry out evaluation of every Director's performance along with the Board; 
c) formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 

recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors; key managerial personnel and 
other employees; 

d) formulate the criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
e) devise a policy on Board diversity; 
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f)   Evaluate the level and composition of remuneration to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. 

g)  Ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance    
benchmarks; 

h)   Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of independent directors. 

i) to recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.* 
 
*Included as per the amendment by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 

2018 
 

i) Composition 

 
From 1st April, 2019 to 30th September 2019, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of the following 

members: 

1. Mr. Ankur Sangal (Non- Executive, Independent Director)  -  Chairman  
2. Ms. Sonal (Non- Executive, Independent Director)     -   Member 
3. Mr. Amit Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)     -  Member 

 
During the year the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company reconstituted with the approval of 
Board in their meeting held on 30th September 2019 and as on 31st March 2020 the committee comprised of the 
following members: 
 

1. Mr. Ankur Sangal (Non- Executive, Independent Director)    -  Chairman  
2. Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj (Non- Executive, Independent Director) -   Member 
3. Mr. Amit Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)       -  Member 

 

ii) Meetings and Attendance during the year: 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has met one time: 
30/07/2019 

 
Attendance of the Directors at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31st March, 2020 is as 
follows: 

 
Director Category No. of Meetings Held Attended                                      

Mr Ankur Sangal Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Amit Agarwal Member 1 1 

Ms. Sonal Member 1 1 

Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj* Member 0 0 

        *Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj appointed as member on 30th September 2019 
 

(iv)Policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their Remuneration 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a policy for selection of appointment of directors and their 

remuneration. The highlights of this policy are as follows: 

1. Criteria of selection of Non Executive Directors 
 
a. The Non Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to have a diverse 

Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of marketing, finance, taxation, law, governance and general 
management. 

b. In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the independent nature 

of the Directors vis-à-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its function and duties effectively. 

c. The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified for appointment   

under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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d. The Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for 

appointment as Director. 

i.   Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields; 

ii. Personal, Professional or business standing; 

iii. Diversity of the Board. 

e. In case of re-appointment of Non Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the performance 

evaluation of the Director and his engagement level. 

2. Remuneration 
 

The Non Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for participation in the Board 

/ Committee meetings and commission as detailed hereunder: 

i. A Non Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee meeting 

attended by him/her at his/her discretion of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the 

overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014; 

ii. The Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to participate in the Stock Option Scheme of the 

Company, if any, introduced by the Company. 

3. Managing Director & Whole Time Director - Criteria for selection / appointment 
 

For the purpose of selection of the Managing Director or Whole Time Director the Committee shall identify persons of 

integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into 

consideration recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board. 

The Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifications 

as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws. 

Remuneration for the Managing Director or Whole Time Director 

i. At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Managing Director or Whole Time Director may be paid such 

remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Managing Director or Whole Time Director within the overall limits 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii. The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting. 

iii. The remuneration of the Managing Director or Whole Time Director shall comprise only of the fixed component. The 

fixed component shall comprise salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retiral benefits.  

Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees 

I. In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and senior officers just below the 

board level) the Committee shall ensure / consider the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is 

clear; 

II. The Managing Director or Whole Time Director will carry out the individual performance review based on the standard 

appraisal matrix and shall take into account the appraisal score card and other factors and thereafter shall recommend 

the annual increment and performance incentive to the Committee for its review and approval. 



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 45

iv) Details of Remuneration of directors  
 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company has paid the following remuneration to the Directors: 
 
Name of Director Category  Remuneration 

(Rs.)  

Sitting Fees  No. of shares 

held as on 

31/03/2020 

Mr. Deepak Goel  Executive Director 1800000 Nil 11000 

Mr. Praveen Kumar Goel Executive Director 1800000 Nil 117000 

Mr. Amit Agarwal Non-Executive Director Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Shubhakar Pathak Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Nil 5000 Nil 

Mr. Ankur Sangal Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Nil 25000 Nil 

Ms. Sonal Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Nil 5000 Nil 

Ms. Neha Agarwal Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Nil 30000 Nil 

Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Nil 20000 Nil 

*Ms. Neha Agarwal and Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj, Independent Directors of the Company appointed in AGM held on 30th 
September 2019 in place of Mr. Shubhakar Pathak and Ms. Sonal. 

 
3. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 
i) Terms of Reference 

 

During the period under review, the Stakeholder Relationship committee scope was amended as per the amendments by 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  

(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 inserted w.e.f 1st April 2019. The role and primary purpose of the Committee, among 

other things, is the following:- 

(1) To resolve the grievances of the security holders of company including complaints related to transfer/transmission 

of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, 

general meetings etc.  

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the company in respect of various services being rendered 

by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 

dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders 

of the company. 

(5) Approve share transfer and oversee and review all matters connected with transfer of Company Securities. 
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ii) Composition 
 

As on 31st March 2020 the Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprised of the following directors as members:   

 Mr. Amit Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)      -Chairman 

 Mr. Deepak Goel (Whole Time Director)           - Member 

 Mr. Ankur Sangal (Non-Executive Independent Director)   - Member 

 

iii) Meetings and Attendance during the year: 
 

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has met 3times:  

17/04/2019, 01/06/2019, 23/07/2019. 

Attendance of the Directors at the Stakeholder Relationship Committee as on 31st March, 2020is as follows: 
 

 
The company secretary of the company is the compliance officer. 
The number of complaints received from the shareholders during the last financial year - NIL  
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders- NIL 
Number of pending complaints - NIL  

 
Both the physical transfer and dematerialization of the shares are handled by Registrar & Share Transfer agent M/s Beetal 
Financial and Computer Services Private Limited. In terms of the requirement of SEBI directives the company is providing 
the facility of transfer and dematerialization of securities simultaneously. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Audit Committee regularly reviews the risk management strategy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness of risk 
management policies and procedures. 

 

Director Category No. of Meetings held 
 

Attended 

Mr. Amit Agarwal 

 

Chairman 3 3 

Mr. Deepak Goel Member 3 3 

Mr. Ankur Sangal Member 3 3 
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:  
 

i) Location and time, where last three AGM held & Special resolution passed in the previous 3 AGMs. 
 

AGM  DATE    LOCATION TIME SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED IN AGM 

24th AGM 30.09.2019 Bipin Chandra Pal Memorial  
Bhavan, A-81, 
Chittranjan Park, 
New Delhi-19 

11:00 AM 1) Appointment of Ms. NehaAgarwal as Non-

Executive Independent Director of the 

Company. 

2) Appointment of Ms. Pooja Bhardwaj as 

Non-Executive Independent Director of 

the Company. 

3) Reappointment of Mr. Ankur Sangal as 

Non-Executive Independent Director of 

the Company. 

4) Reappointment of Mr. Deepak Goel as 

Whole Time Director of the Company. 

5) Reappointment of Mr. Praveen Kumar 

Goel as Whole Time Director of the 

Company. 

23rd AGM 26.09.2018 Bipin Chandra Pal Memorial  
Bhavan, A-81, 
Chittranjan Park, 
New Delhi-19 

11:00 AM 1) Alteration of Memorandum of 

Association of the Company 

22nd AGM 28.09.2017 Bipin Chandra Pal Memorial  
Bhavan, A-81, 
Chittranjan Park, 
New Delhi-19 

11:30 AM N.A. 

 
ii) DETAIL OF VOTING PATTERN OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED BY POSTAL BALLOT LAST YEAR- No resolution was 

passed by postal ballot during the last year. 
 
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
 
The quarterly results as per the format prescribed by the Stock Exchange for the quarter ended 30th June 2019, 30th September 

2019, 31st December 2019 and 31st March 2020 were published in Financial Express and Jansatta and are also submitted to all the 

Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed. Further these results are also available on our website 

www.neerajpaper.com. Your Company believes that all the stakeholders should have access to adequate information about the 

Company. All information, which could have a material bearing on the share prices, is released at the earliest to all the stock 

exchange where the share of company are listed in accordance with the requirements of listing agreement. 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

Registered office  218-222, 2nd Floor, Aggarwal Prestige Mall, Plot No. 2, 

Community Centre, Along Road no. 44, Pitampura, Delhi-110034 

Annual General Meeting  

Date 29th September 2020 

Time  03.00 P.M 

Venue Deemed to be conducted from Registered Office of Company 
218-222, Agarwal Prestige Mall, Near M2K Cinema, Pitampura, 
Delhi-110034  through Video Conferencing /Other Audio 
Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) facility 

 
Financial Year 1st April to 31st March 

Adoption of financial results (Tentative)  

For the Quarter ended 30th June, 2020 On or Before 15th September 2020 (as per date extended by 

SEBI) 

For the Quarter ended 30th September, 2020 On and Before 14thNovember, 2020 

For the Quarter ended 31st December, 2020 On and Before 14th February, 2021 

For the Quarter ended 31st March, 2021 On and Before 30th May, 2021 

Date of Book Closure From 23.09.2020 to 29.09.2020 (Both days inclusive) 

Dividend payment date Not applicable 
Listing of shares on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited – PJ Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001 

Listing fees as applicable have been paid. 

Stock Code BSE Ltd – 539409 

NSDL/CDSL ISIN ISIN No – INE894J01019 

 

Revision of Credit Rating 

Last year, the company has obtained credit rating from India Ratings & Research in which the rating of the company has revised 

to Negative from Stable while affirming its Long Term Issuer rating at ‘IND BB+’. 

The instrument-wise rating actions are as follows: 

Instrument Type Rating/Outlook Rating Action 

 

Fund Based Working Capital Limits 

 

IND BB/Negative/IND A4+ Rating affirmed; Outlook revised 

to Negative from Stable 

Non- Fund Based Working Capital 

Limits 

 

IND A4+ Affirmed 
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OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests 
of the Company. 
 
There were no materially significant related party transactions with the Company's Promoters, Directors, Management or 
their relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company.  

 
Transactions with related parties entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and on an Arm’s 
length basis. These are periodically placed before the Audit Committee for review. Particulars of contracts or 
arrangements or transactions in Form AOC-2 are attached as Annexure– III of Board Report. Members may also refer to 
the notes to the accounts for details of related party transactions. The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy on dealing with related party Transactions to regulate 
transactions between the Company and its Related Parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act 2013, the Rules thereunder and the Listing Agreement. The policy has also been uploaded on the website of the 
Company athttp://www.neerajpaper.com/index.php?page=code_conduct 
 
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 
  
The Company followed the guidelines as laid down in the IND-AS, prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, for the preparation of the financial statements. 
   
Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties imposed on the company by stock exchange or SEBI or any 

statutory authority, on any matter related to the capital market, during the last 3 years. 

In terms of the SEBI circular no: CIR/CFD/CMD/12/2015 dated November 30, 2015, in the matter of non compliance of 

Regulation 33 for late submission of Financial results for the quarter ended March 2018, Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

imposed the penalty on the company for the amount of Rs. 10,000/-. However this defaults was made due to the technical 

error of the system & company has paid the entire penalty amount. 

Whistle Blower Policy 

In Pursuant to Listing Regulation and as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has established a vigil 
mechanism/Whistle Blower policy for the directors and employees to report genuine concerns or grievances about 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Vigil 
Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
http://www.neerajpaper.com/index.php?page=vigil_mechanism. During the year under review, no employee was 
denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 
Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements  

Mandatory Requirements 
 

The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements as provided in SEBI (Listing Obligations 
&Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Adoption of non-mandatory requirements under Listing Agreement 
 
i) The Board: 
 
Since the company does not have a non-executive chairman it does not maintain such office. 
 
ii) Shareholders Rights: 
 
The quarterly financial results are published in widely circulated dailies and also uploaded on Company’s website. 
 
iii) Audit Qualification: 
 
During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Auditors' Report on the Company's financial 
statements. 
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iv) Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: 
 
The company does not have a CEO and therefore there are no separate posts. 
 
v) Reporting of Internal Auditor: 
 
The internal auditor reports to audit committee. 

Web link where policy for determining material subsidiaries is disclosed 

Not applicable as there is no subsidiary of the company. 

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions 

https://www.neerajpaper.com/POLICY%20FOR%20RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTION-2.pdf 

Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging activities 

Company is engaged in trading activity and no manufacturing activity is carried out in the company. Thus, no commodity 

price risk is there in the company and no hedging activities are required for the same.  

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary 

The certificate from Practicing Company Secretary that  none of the directors on the board of the company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed herewith. 

Total Fees paid for all services to Statutory Auditors of the Company 

The total fees for all services paid by the listed entity to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network 

entity of which the statutory auditor is a part is Rs. 1.50 Lacs. 

Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013: 

a) No. of complaints filed during the year: Nil 

b) No. of complaints disposed during the year: Nil 

c) No. of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil 

Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in last financial Year* 

                                                             (Rs. Per share) 

*Source- www.bseindia.com 

 BSE Ltd. 

MONTH HIGH LOW 

April, 2019 13.00 13.00 

May, 2019 13.00 13.00 

June, 2019 13.00 13.00 

July,2019 13.00 12.50 

Aug, 2019 13.12 10.93 

Sep,2019 10.93 10.00 

October, 2019 11.87 10.30 

November, 2019 11.50 11.50 

December, 2019 11.50 11.50 

January, 2020 11.50 11.50 

February, 2020 12.06 11.50 

March, 2020 12.66 12.66 
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Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex:* 

 

*Source- www.bseindia.com 

 
 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
Beetal Financial and Computer Services Pvt Limited, 

Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir,  

Behind Local Shopping Center,  

Near Dada HarsukhdasMandir, New Delhi- 110 062 

 
Share Transfer System 
 
The power to approve the transfer of securities has been delegated by the Board to the Share Transfer Agents. Share 

transfer requests are processed within an average of 15 days from the date of receipt. Shareholders are encouraged to opt  

CLOSING PRICE 

MONTH BSE SENSEX NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD. 

April, 2019 39031.55 13.00 

May, 2019 39714.20 13.00 

June, 2019 39394.64 13.00 

July,2019 37481.12 13.00 

Aug, 2019 37332.79 10.93 

Sep,2019 38667.33 10.30 

October, 2019 40129.05 11.50 

November, 2019 40793.81 11.50 

December, 2019 41253.74 11.50 

January, 2020 40723.49 11.50 

February, 2020 38297.29 12.06 

March, 2020 29468.49 12.06 
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for dematerialization of the physical shares as the transfer of physical shares was only allowed upto April 2019 and now 
onwards the shares can only be transferred through demat account of the shareholders. It should be noted that: 
 
_ The authority relating to share transfers has been delegated to the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee  
 
_ The Board has authorised the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents ‘Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private Limited’ 
to approve all routine transfers and transmissions of shares which are effected within 15 days. 
 
Distribution of Shareholding 
 
The Distribution of the shareholding of the equity shares as on 31st March, 2020are as follows: 

No of Equity 

shares held 

No. of

Shareholders 

% of share holders Total number of 

shares 

% of share holding 

 1 – 5000 2232 77.77 729738 6.6340 

5001 - 10000 237 8.25 200045 1.8186 

10001 - 20000 220 7.66 3620470 3.2913 

20001 – 30000 54 1.88 132255 1.2023 

30001 – 40000 22 0.76 79700 0.7245 

40001 – 50000 24 0.83 102000 0.9273 

50001-100000 30 1.04 225555 2.0505 

100001 & above 51 1.77 9168660 83.3515 

Total 2870 100.00 11000000 100 

 

Categories of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2020 

Category Total no of shares % of shareholding 

Promoters/Relatives/Promoters Companies 3061583 27.83 

Financial Institutions/ Banks 0 0 

FIIs 0 0 

Mutual Funds 0 0 

Private Corporate bodies 5958710 54.17 

Indian Public 1979707 18.00 

`NRI/ OCBs 0 0 

Others 0 0 

Total 11000000 100.00 
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Dematerialization of shares and Liquidity 

 
The trading of the shares of the company is permitted in dematerialization form as per the notification issued by SEBI. The 
company has entered into agreement with NSDL and CDSL for giving effect to the same. 
 

Outstanding GDR/ ADRs/ Warrants/ Options 

The Company has not issued GDRs or ADRs. There are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments. 
 
Plant Locations 
Company is involved in the trading business only and thus there is no manufacturing plant of the company. 

Address for Correspondence 
 

For share certificate, change of address and any 

other query relating to the shares 

M/s Beetal Financial and Computer Services Pvt Ltd;  

Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping 

Center, Near Dada HarsukhdasMandir, New Delhi- 110 062 

For Investor Assistance Ms. Mansi Taneja 
Company Secretary 
 
218-222, 2nd Floor, Aggarwal Prestige Mall, Plot No. 2, 

Community Centre, Along Road no. 44, Pitampura, Delhi-

110034 

 
Email id :  mansi@neerajpaper.com 
Contact No.: 011-47527700 

 
 
Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account  
 
The Company has no shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account, hence the above disclosure is not 
applicable. 
 
 
CEO / CFO Certificate 
 
The Whole Time Director and the CFO have furnished the requisite certificate to the Board of Directors under Regulation 
17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 
 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory corporate governance requirements under the Listing Regulations. 
Further, the company confirms the compliance with the requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 
sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 
 
The company has complied with the Para E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for the purpose of ensuring Corporate Governance. A certificate to this effect has been obtained from M/s 
Rajeev Singhal & Co., Chartered Accountants; Statutory Auditor of the company has been attached to this Annual Report.  
 
Note:       The Corporate Governance report is as on 31st March, 2020 
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THDATED: 28  AUGUST 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  

CERTIFICATION FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
(PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 10 OF PART C OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENT) REGULATIONS, 2015) 
 

 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from Neeraj Paper Marketing 
Limited having CIN L74899DL1995PLC066194 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 
clause 10 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the declarations as 
received from the Directors of the Company in this regard, we certify that: 
 
“none of the Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company for the Financial year ending on 31st March 2020 have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority”  
 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
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CERTIFICATION UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI(LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENT)REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
 
 

(a) That we have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ending 31st March, 2020 
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief : 
 
(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 
 

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

(b) That to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the company during the 
year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 
 

(c) That we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting 
and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 
 

(d) That we had indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee – 
(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
(ii) Significant changes in accounting Policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements; and 
Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or 

other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal control systems over financial reporting. 

thDATED: 4  SEPTEMBER, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  
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DECLARATION BY THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR ON THE COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT AS LAID DOWN 

BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

I, DEEPAK GOEL, Whole Time Director of Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited hereby certify that the Directors and members 

of senior management have affirmed the compliance with the code of conduct. 

The above submission is based on the declarations as received from the members to whom the code applies and also on 

the basis of the submission of the compliance officer to the code. 

thDATED: 4  SEPTEMBER, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  
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DATED: 28th AUGUST, 2020

PLACE: DELHI                                  

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To the Members of NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED 
during the year ended 31st March, 2020 as stipulated in Chapter IV read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
And Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015of the said Company with the Stock Exchanges. 
 
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to the review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement 
of the company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanation given to us by the company, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing 
Agreement or SEBI Regulations, as and when applicable.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 58

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies  Act, 2013  (“the  Act”) in  the  manner so  required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the  Indian  Accounting  Standards prescribed under  section  133  of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial 
statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of  the standalone  financial  statements, our responsibility  is  to read the other  information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent  with  the  standalone  financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of  Directors is  responsible  for  the  matters stated in  section 134(5)  of the  Act with  respect  to the 
preparation of these standalone financial statements that  give  a  true  and  fair  view  of  the  financial  position, financial performance, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows  of the  Company  in  accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally  accepted  in  India.  This  responsibility  also  includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the  Act for safeguarding  the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that  
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are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone  financial  statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability  to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable,  matters related to going  concern and using  the  going  concern  basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 
 

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

· Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 
 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 

consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 

of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with  relevant  ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  standalone  financial  statements  comply with  the  Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as   a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  of  the Company  and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in  “Annexure  A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  as amended in  our  opinion  and to the  best of  our  information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 

143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
 FOR M/S RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. 

Firm Registration No. 008692C   
Chartered Accountants 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Place: Delhi 
Dated: 31st July, 2020 
UDIN: 20408730AAAACJ9867 

CA SUNIL KUMAR 
Partner 

M.No. 408730 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED (“the 

Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

 
Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of  
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collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
 FOR M/S RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. 

Firm Registration No. 008692C   
Chartered Accountants 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
 
Place: Delhi 
Dated: 31st July, 2020 

CA SUNIL KUMAR 
Partner 

M.No. 408730 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 

Members of Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited of even date) 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets. 
 

 (b) The fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the management in accordance with a 
regular programme of periodical verification in phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its Fixed Assets. The discrepancies, if any, noticed on 
such physical verification have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts. 
  

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the 
examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, 
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in 
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 
 

(ii) We have been explained by the management that the inventory have been physically verified at reasonable 
intervals during the year. As far as we can ascertain and according to information and explanations given to us, the 
discrepancies, whenever material, noticed on such physical verification of inventory as compared to book records 
were properly dealt within the books of accounts. 
 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firm, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of Act in respect of making investments. However, the Company has not granted 
any loans or provided any guarantees and securities. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from the 
public. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(vi) Company is engaged in trading and marketing activities and the maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the 
company as specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 
the provision of clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 
 (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 

Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value 
Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. 
 

 (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 
 

 (c) There are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of excise, duty of custom, or value 
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as given below: 

Name of statute Nature 
of dues 

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates 

Forum where dispute is pending Amount 
(Rs.) 

Amount 
paid 

under 
protest 

Delhi Value 
Added Tax Act 
2004/Delhi Sales 
Tax Act 1975 

Sales 
Tax/VAT 

2013-14 Assessing Officer (VATO), Sales Tax Department 10306315 4000000 
2013-14 Assessing Officer (VATO), Sales Tax Department 12219538 
2013-14 Assessing Officer (VATO), Sales Tax Department 13624628 
2013-14 Assessing Officer (VATO), Sales Tax Department 7610112 
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(viii) 

 
Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we are of 
the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowing to any banks and financial 
institutions. 
 

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) or term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 
 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act. 
 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the record of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

(xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debenture during 
the year under review. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

  
 FOR M/S RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. 

Firm Registration No. 008692C   
Chartered Accountants 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
 
Place: Delhi 
Dated: 31st July, 2020 

CA SUNIL KUMAR 
Partner 

M.No. 408730 
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CIN: L74899DL1995PLC066194

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

ASSETS

1. Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 4 743.98

                       

780.88

                       

Other non-current assets 5 283.07

                       

273.51

                       

1,027.05

                    

1,054.39

                    

2. Current assets

Inventories 6 -

                             

234.25

                       

Trade receivables 7 5,753.28

                    

6,434.01

                    

Cash and cash equivalents 8 7.84

                           

7.23

                           

Bank balances other than covered above 9 15.71

                         

46.16

                         

10 7.13

                           

-

                             

Other current assets 11 128.83

                       

197.42

                       

5,912.79

                    

6,919.07

                    

6,939.84

                    

7,973.46

                    

EQUITY

Equity Share capital 12 1,100.00

                    

1,100.00

                    

Other Equity 13 1,427.59

                    

1,342.70

                    

2,527.59

                    
2,442.70

                    

LIABILITIES

1. Non- current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 14 669.47                       756.38                       

Provisions 15 26.83                         33.91                         
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 54.01                         64.28                         
Other non-current liabilities 17 126.41                       139.02                       

876.72
                       

993.59
                       

2. Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 18 1,491.70

                    
1,351.16

                    Trade payables 19 1,832.63

                    

2,888.33

                    Other Financial liabilities 20 128.04

                       

123.00

                       
Other current liabilities 21 57.31

                         

155.67

                       
Provisions 22 25.85

                         

14.56

                         
10 -

                             

4.45

                           
3,535.53

                    

4,537.17

                    6,939.84

                    

7,973.46

                    

Company Information 1

Basis of Preparation 2

3

FOR M/S RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Regn. No. 008692C

Sd/- Sd/-

(DEEPAK GOEL) 

Wholetime Director Wholetime Director

DIN - 00014638 DIN - 00200527

Sd/-

(CA SUNIL KUMAR)

Partner

M.No. 408730 Sd/- Sd/-

(MANSI) (VIPIN KUMAR GOEL) 

Date: 31st July, 2020 Company Secretary 

Place: Delhi

BALANCE SHEET

As at March 31st, 2020

Note No.
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NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED

218-222, AGGARWAL PRESTIGE MALL, PLOT No.2, ALONG ROAD No.44, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI-110034

CIN: L74899DL1995PLC066194

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

I Revenue from operations 23 14,426.71

                  

25,220.46

                  

II Other income 24 1.49

                           

13.30

                         

III Total Income (I + II) 14,428.20

                  

25,233.76

                  

IV Expenses

Cost of material consumed -

                             

-

                             

Purchases of stock in trade 25 13,630.57

                  

23,204.09

                  

Changes in inventories of

-Finished goods -

                             

-

                             

-Work-in-progress -

                             

-

                             

-Stock in trade 26 234.25

                       

1,057.13

                    

27 144.61

                       
165.53

                       

Finance costs 28 221.12
                       

505.01
                       

 
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 44.59

                         
37.89

                         

Other expenses 29 89.56
                         

135.34
                       

Total expense (IV) 14,364.70
                  

25,104.99
                  

V 63.50
                         

128.77
                       

VI  Exceptional Items 30 -                             45.68                         

VII 63.50                         83.09                         

VIII Income Tax Expense: 31

(1) Current tax 2.00                           37.82                         
(2) Deferred Tax (14.89)                        11.49                         

IX 76.39                         33.78                         
X Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI')

13.12
                         

(4.07)
                          

Tax on above 4.62
                           

(1.36)
                          

-
                             

-
                             Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8.50

                           
(2.71)

                          
XI Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (IX+X) 84.89

                         

31.07

                         XII Earnings per equity share 32

(1) Basic 0.69

                           

0.31

                           (2) Diluted 0.69

                           

0.31

                          

 

FOR M/S RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 008692C
Sd/- Sd/-

(PRAVEEN KUMAR GOEL) (DEEPAK GOEL) 

Wholetime Director Wholetime Director

DIN - 00014638 DIN - 00200527

Sd/-

Partner

M.No. 408730 Sd/- Sd/-

(MANSI) (VIPIN KUMAR GOEL) 

Date: 31st July, 2020 Company Secretary 

Place: Delhi PAN - DNIPM9327Q PAN - ACSPG3315N

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For the year ended  March 31st, 2020

   PARTICULARS Note No.
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CIN: L74899DL1995PLC066194

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity Share Capital

Amount Amount

(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)

 Opening Share Capital 11,000,000
            

1,100.00
                

11,000,000
            

1,100.00
               

 Add: Shares issuued During the year -
                         

-
                         

-
                         

-
                        

 Total 11,000,000
            

1,100.00
                

11,000,000
            

1,100.00
               

 Less Reduction in Capital  -
                         

-
                         

-
                         

-
                        

 Closing Share Capital 11,000,000
            

1,100.00
                

11,000,000
            

1,100.00
               

B. Statement of change in equity (Rs. In Lacs)

As At April 1, 2018 928.57                   391.42                   (8.36)                      1,311.63            
-                         33.78                     -                         33.78                 

Other Comprehensive Income -                         -                         (2.71)                      (2.71)                  
As At March 31, 2019 928.57                   425.20                   (11.07)                    1,342.70            

As At April 1, 2019 928.57                   425.20                   (11.07)                    1,342.70               
-                         76.39                     -                         76.39                 

Other Comprehensive Income -
                         

-
                         

8.50
                       

8.50
                   

As At March 31, 2020 928.57
                   

501.59
                   

(2.57)
                      

1,427.59
            

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 008692C Sd/- Sd/-

(PRAVEEN KUMAR GOEL) 

Wholetime Director Wholetime Director

DIN - 00014638 DIN - 00200527

Sd/-

(CA SUNIL KUMAR)

Partner

M.No. 408730 Sd/- Sd/-

(MANSI) (VIPIN KUMAR GOEL) 

Date: 31st July, 2020 Company Secretary 

Place: Delhi PAN - DNIPM9327Q PAN - ACSPG3315N

Security Premium Retained Earnings

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Total Equity

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Nos Nos

Reserves and Surplus
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Place: Delhi PAN - DNIPM9327Q PAN - ACSPG3315N

For the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

A.
63.50

                         

83.09

                         

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 44.59

                         

37.89

                         

Finance costs 221.12

                       

505.01

                       

Other Non Operating Income (1.49)

                          

(13.30)

                        

327.72

                       

612.69

                       

Changes in inventories 234.25

                       

1,057.13

                    

Changes in trade receivables 680.73

                       

2,245.12

                    

Changes in other current assets 68.59

                         

199.67

                       

Changes in other non-current assets (9.56)

                          

(69.78)

                        

Changes in trade payables (1,055.70)

                   

850.24

                       

5.04

                           

9.61

                           

Changes in other current liabilities (98.36)

                        

(62.60)

                        

Changes in provisions-current 11.29

                         

0.80

                           

Changes in current tax liabilities/Assets (net) (11.58)

                        
3.08

                           

Changes in provisions - non current (7.08)
                          

11.05
                         

Changes in deferred tax liabilities (net) (10.27)
                        

11.49
                         

Changes in other non current liabilities (12.61)
                        

(2.80)
                          

Cash generated from operations 122.46
                       

4,865.70
                    

Net income tax (paid) / refunds 12.89                         (49.31)                        

135.35                       4,816.39                    

B.

Purchase of Property,Plant & Equipment (8.09)                          (58.90)                        
Proceeds from sale of Property,Plant & Equipment 0.40                           4.29                           
Change in investments in bank deposits 30.45

                         
(28.73)

                        
Changes in investments -

                             
25.00

                         Other Comprehensive Income 8.50
                           

(2.71)
                          Other Non Operating Income 1.49

                           
13.30

                         32.75

                         
(47.75)

                        
C.

Repayment of long-term borrowings (86.91)

                        

(42.48)

                        
Finance cost (221.12)

                      

(505.01)

                      
(308.03)

                      

(547.49)

                      
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (139.93)

                      

4,221.15

                    
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,343.93)

                   

(5,565.08)

                  

 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note-8) (1,483.86)

                   

(1,343.93)

                  

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 008692C

Sd/- Sd/-

(PRAVEEN KUMAR GOEL) 

Wholetime Director Wholetime Director

DIN - 00014638 DIN - 00200527

Sd/-

Partner

M.No. 408730 Sd/- Sd/-

(MANSI) (VIPIN KUMAR GOEL) 

Date: 31st July, 2020 Company Secretary 
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Note 1 
Company Overview 
 
The company has its Registered Office as well as business place at 218-222, Aggarwal Prestige Mall, Plot NO. 2, Community Centre, 

along road no. 44, Pitampura, Delhi-110034. The company is engaged in Trading & Marketing Business. 

These financial statements were approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on July 31st, 

2020. 

 
Note 2 
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
2.1 Statement of Compliance: 
 
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended time to 
time  and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
2.2 Basis of Preparation: 
 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The financial statements are 
presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest INR Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated. 
 
2.3 Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates 
involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note. 
 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in 
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates 
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 
 
Estimation of Uncertainties relating to the Global Health Pandemic from COVID-19 
The COVID-19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation with adverse 
impact on economy and business. Supply Chain disruptions in India as a result of the outbreak started with restrictions on 
movement of goods, closure of borders etc., in several states followed by a nationwide lockdown from the 25th of March 2020 
announced by the Indian Government, to stem the spread of COVID-19.  

In light of these circumstances, the Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on the carrying 
amounts of financials assets, inventory, receivables, advances, property plant and equipment, Intangibles etc. as well as liabilities 
accrued. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this 
pandemic, the Company has used internal and external information such as our current contract terms, financial strength of 
partners, investment profile, future volume estimates from the business etc. Having reviewed the underlying data and based on 
current estimates the Company expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered and there is no significant impact on 
liabilities accrued. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of 
approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic 
conditions. 
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Note 3 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 
 
These tangible assets are held for use in supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. These are recognized and 
carried under cost model i.e. cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. 

· Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and other expenses directly incidental to acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and 
installation including site restoration up to the time when the asset is ready for intended use. Such Costs also include Borrowing 
Cost if the recognition criteria are met. 

· When a major inspection/repair occurs, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a 
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous inspection/repair is 
derecognized. 

· Depreciation has been provided on straight line method in terms of expected life span of assets as referred to in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

S.No. Description of Assets Useful life 
1. Office Building 60 
2. Furniture and Fixtures 10 
3. Vehicles 8 
4. Air Conditioner 10 
5. Computer 3 

 
· Components relevant to Property, plant and equipment, where significant, are separately depreciated on straight line basis in 

terms of their life span assessed by technical evaluation in item specific context. 
· During sales of Property, plant and equipment any profit earned/loss sustained towards excess/shortfall of sale value vis-a-vis 

carrying cost of assets is accounted for in statement of profit & loss. 
 
3.2 Impairment 
 
The carrying amount of Property, plant and equipments, Intangible assets and Investment property are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date to assess impairment if any, based on internal / external factors. An asset is treated as impaired, when the carrying 
cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value, being higher of value in use and net selling price. An impairment loss is recognised as 
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss 
recognised in prior accounting period is reversed, if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount. 
 
3.3 Inventory Valuation 
 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes purchase price, duties, transport & handing costs 
and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition and bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
 
The basis of determination of cost remains as follows: 

· Stock in Trade: Company is engaged in trading and marketing business and generally no stock is maintained by the company. 
However in applicable cases Cost of inventories are ascertained on "FIFO" basis. 
 
3.4 Financial Assets & Liabilities 
 
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity. 
 
 3.4.1 Financial Assets 
 
At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are subsequently classified under 
following three categories according to the purpose for which they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 

3.4.1.1 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
 
At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal amount 

outstanding on specified dates. These financial assets are intended to be held until maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently  
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measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 
The EIR amortisation is included as interest income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
profit or loss. 
 
 3.4.1.2 Financial Assets at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
 
At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding 
on specified dates, as well as held for selling. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with 
all fair value movements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income calculated using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method, impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from 
the OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
 3.4.1.3 Financial Assets at Fair value through Profit or Loss 
 
At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are held for trading, or which are measured neither at Amortised Cost nor at Fair 
Value through OCI. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

· Investment in Equity Shares 
 
Investments in Equity Securities are initially measured at cost. 
 

· Trade Receivables 
 
A Receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect to the amount due from customers on account of goods sold or 
services rendered in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. For some trade receivables the 
Company may obtain security in the form of guarantee, security deposit or letter of credit which can be called upon if the 
counterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement. 
 

· Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank and demand deposits with banks with an original maturity of three 
months or less which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 
 

· Other Bank Balances 
 
Deposits with banks with an original maturity of more than three months but subject to 12 months are shown under this head. 
 

· De-recognition of Financial Assets 
 
Financial Asset is primarily derecognized when: 
 

· The right to receive cash flows from asset has expired, or 
 

· The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “ pass-through” arrangement. 
 
 3.4.2 Financial Liabilities 
 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments. 
 
 3.4.2.1 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. The Company has not designated 
any financial liabilities upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss are at each reporting date with all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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3.4.2.2 Financial Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost 
 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method (‘’EIR’’) except for those designated in an effective hedging relationship. The carrying value of borrowings 
that are designated as hedged items in fair value hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to record 
changes in fair values attributable to the risks that are hedged in effective hedging relationship. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

· Loans and Borrowings 
 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss 
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are 
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. 
 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
 

· Trade and Other Payables 
 

A payable is classified as ’trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased or services received in 

the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the 

end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due 

within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

· De-recognition of Financial Liability 
 
A Financial Liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the 
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income 
or finance costs. 
 

· Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
 
3.5 Revenue Recognition 
 
The Company earns revenue primarily from trading activities. 
Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes a 
comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using 
cumulative effect method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard is recognised as at the date of initial application 
(i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial 
application and the comparative information in the interim statement of profit and loss is not restated – i.e. the comparative 
information continues to be reported under previous standards on revenue i.e. Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. There was no impact on 
adoption of Ind AS 115 to the financial statements of the Company. 
 
Revenue is recognized when the Company satisfies the performance obligation by transferring the promised services to the 
customers. Services are considered performed when the customer obtains control, whereby the customer gets the ability to direct 
the use of such services and substantially obtains all benefits from the services. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or 
ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. 
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In order to determine, if it is acting as principal or as an agent, the entity shall determine whether the nature of its promise is a 
performance obligation to provide the specified services itself (i.e. the entity is a principal) or to arrange for those services to be 
provided by the other party (i.e. the entity is an agent) for all its revenue arrangements. 
 
3.6 Employee Benefits 
 

· Defined Benefit Plan 
 
The Company’s Liabilities on account of Gratuity of employees are determined at the end of each financial year on the basis of 
actuarial valuation certificates obtained from Registered Actuary in accordance with the measurement procedure as per Indian 
Accounting Standard (INDAS)-19., ‘Employee Benefits’. The costs of providing benefits under these plans are also determined on 
the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end. Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans are recognized through OCI in 
the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
 
The Defined Benefit Plan can be short term or Long terms which are defined below: 
 
i) Short-term Employee Benefit 
 
All employees’ benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits. 
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, 
ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service. 
 
ii) Long-term employee Benefits 
 
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee renders 
the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 
 
3.7 Borrowing Costs 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs. 
 
3.8 Income Tax  
 

· Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations 
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 

· Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and 
are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 
The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that 
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The 
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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· Minimum Alternate Tax 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 
 
3.9 Earnings per Share (EPS) 
 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average 
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average 
market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the 
period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 
 
The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any 
share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board 
of Directors. 
 
3.10 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities /Assets 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net 
of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
 
Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement. Contingent 
liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes. 
 
Contingent Assets are not recognised in financial statements but are disclosed, since the former treatment may result in the 
recognition of income that may or may not be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related 
asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. 
 
3.11 Leases 

Ind AS 116, Leases (new standard on lease) is effective for the financial year beginning from 1st April, 2019. The new standard has 
a significant impact on the Lessee accounting and it prescribes a single lease model which requires capitalization of Right of Use 
(ROU) assets on the basis of future lease rentals and creations of leasehold obligation in the books of the lessee. The standard 
provides short term exemption and low value exemption wherein the assets and liability accounting may not be required and the 
lessee can record rental expenses in profit and loss. Other than these two exemptions there will not be any rent in the profit and 
loss and instead of rent there will be depreciation and interest cost will arise.   There is no impact due to notification of this standard 
as the company has availed short term exemption and rent expense is reflecting in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
3.12 Cash Flow Statement 
 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company 
are segregated. 
 
3.13 Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non Current 
 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated 
as current when it is: 
· Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
· Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
· Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
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· Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when: 
· It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
· It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
· It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
· There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. 

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 
3.14 Fair value Measurement 
 
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to 

sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

· In the principal market for the asset or liability. 

· In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measure using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset 

or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits 

by using the assets in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 

and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 

measure the fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and maximizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured and disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 

value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

1. Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

2. Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) 

3. Level 3 – Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether 

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 

characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
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NOTE `5'

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Unsecured Considered Good:

Other advances 272.59

                       

263.03

                       

Security deposits 10.48

                         

10.48

                         

283.07

                       

273.51

                       

NOTE `6'

INVENTORIES (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Stock of goods traded -

                             

234.25

                       

-

                             

234.25

                       

NOTE `7'

TRADE RECEIVABLES - Current (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Unsecured and Considered Good 5,753.28                    6,434.01                    

5,753.28                    6,434.01                    

NOTE `8'

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Cash on Hand 4.99

                           

5.15

                           
Balance with  Banks 2.85

                           

2.08

                           7.84

                           

7.23

                           (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 7.84

                           

7.23

                           

Bank Overdraft (1,491.70)

                   

(1,351.16)

                   

(1,483.86)

                   

(1,343.93)

                   NOTE `9'

OTHER BANK BALANCES (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Balance with  Banks

-In Fixed Deposit Accounts 15.71

                         

46.16

                         

15.71

                         

46.16

                         

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS
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NOTE `10'

CURRENT TAX ASSETS/LIABILITY (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

11.25
                         

25.00
                         

TDS/TCS Receivable 6.33                           7.01                           

17.58                         32.01                         

10.45                         36.46                         

10.45                         36.46                         
Net Current Tax Assets/(Liability) 7.13                           (4.45)                          

NOTE `11'

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Advance to Suppliers & Others 64.56
                         

136.80
                       Balances with Govt. Departments 15.92

                         
15.53

                         Balances with Govt. Departments (Pending Cases) 48.35

                         

45.09

                         
TOTAL 128.83

                       

197.42
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NOTE `12'

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Authorised Share Capital

1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs10/-each 1,100.00

                    

1,100.00

                    

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up in cash 1,100.00

                    

1,100.00

                    

TOTAL 1,100.00

                    

1,100.00

                    

12.1 Reconciliation of Shares: 

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

 Opening Share Capital 11,000,000

                

11,000,000

                

-

                             

-

                             

11,000,000

                

11,000,000

                

 Less: Reduction in Capital  -

                             
-

                             

 Closing Share Capital 11,000,000
                

11,000,000
                

12.2 List of Share holders having 5% or more Shares

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

1 Bindals Papers Mills Limited 707893 707893

% Share Holding 6.44% 6.44%

12.3 Rights, Preferences & Restrictions attached to shares

-No Bonus Share has been issued by the company since incorporation of the company

NOTE `13'

OTHER EQUITY (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

(a) Security premium

Opening Balance 928.57

                       

928.57

                       
-

                             

-

                             
Closing Balance (a) 928.57

                       

928.57

                       (b)

Opening Balance 425.20

                       

391.42

                       

76.39

                         

33.78

                         

Closing Balance (b) 501.59

                       

425.20

                       
(c) Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance (11.07)

                        

(8.36)

                          

8.50

                           

(2.71)

                          

Closing Balance (c) (2.57)

                          

(11.07)

                        

TOTAL 1,427.59 1,342.70

Name of the Shareholder

-The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each share holder is eligible for one vote per share

held.

- In the event of liquidation, the equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to their share holding.
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NOTE `14'

BORROWINGS - Non-current (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

SECURED
(a) Vehicle Loans

-From Private Banks 91.64

                         

83.07

                         

38.22

                         
28.37

                         

shown under Other Current Liabilities 53.42
                         

54.70
                         

(b) Term Loans
-From Financial Institutions 311.56

                       
362.62

                       

58.22
                         

59.87
                         

shown under Other Current Liabilities 253.34
                       

302.75
                       

UNSECURED 
(a) -From Directors -                             13.93                         

(b) -From Body Corporate 362.71                       385.00                       

362.71                       398.93                       

TOTAL 669.47                       756.38                       

14.1

14.2

NOTE `15'
PROVISIONS - Non-current (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Provision for Gratuity 26.83

                         

33.91

                         TOTAL 26.83

                         

33.91

                         

Loan from PNB Housing Finance Limited is secured against Security of Building of the Company at Unit No.218-222, Plot

No.2, Community Centre, Pitampura, Delhi. Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is secured against Security of

Building of the Company at Unit No.217 Plot No.2, Community Centre, Pitampura Delhi. Loan form ICICI Bank and Indiabulls
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NOTE `16'

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Opening 64.28

                         

52.79

                         

Addition/(Deletion) (9.40)

                          

11.49

                         

54.88

                         

64.28

                         

Opening -
                             

-
                             

Addition/(Deletion) 0.87
                           

-
                             

0.87
                           

-
                             

Net Deferred Tax Liability 54.01
                         

64.28
                         

16.1 The components that gave rise to deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Deferred tax liability in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment & intangible asset 54.88                         64.28                         
Total deferred tax liability 54.88                         64.28                         

Deferred tax assets in relation to:

Other comprehensive income 0.87
                           

-
                             

Total deferred tax assets 0.87
                           

-
                             

NOTE `17'
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

-From Directors -

                             

6.07

                           
-From Body Corporate 158.01

                       

167.71

                       
158.01

                       

173.78

                       
Less: Payable in next 12 months 31.60

                         

34.76

                         

transfer to current liabilities

TOTAL 126.41

                       

139.02

                       

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.
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NOTE `18'

BORROWINGS - Current (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Secured

Working Capital Loan- Repayable on Demand

-From Bank of Maharasthra -

                             

520.81

                       

-From Oriental Bank of Commerce 1,491.70

                    

830.35

                       

[Secured by way of Hypothecation of Stocks, Guarantee of 

Directors & Others]

TOTAL 1,491.70

                    

1,351.16

                    

18.1

e. Pledge of FDR of Rs. 6.00 Lacs.

NOTE `19'

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Acceptance

-

                             
-

                             Other than acceptance

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

                             

-

                             
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,832.63

                    

2,888.33

                    TOTAL 1,832.63

                    

2,888.33

                    

NOTE `20'

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - Current (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Current maturities of long term debt 128.04

                       

123.00

                       

TOTAL 128.04

                       

123.00

                       NOTE `21'

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Advance from Customers 9.39

                           

129.39

                       

Government dues payable 46.79

                         

13.80

                         

Other payable 1.13

                           

12.48

                         

TOTAL 57.31

                         

155.67

                       

Working Capital Limit from Oriental Bank of Commerce is secured by First on the assets of the company (Present &

future) and personal guarantee of the directors of the company along with personal guarantee of Sh. Rakesh Kumar & Sh. Neeraj Goel,

Smt. Madhulika Goel, relatives of the directors of the company & corporate guarantee of Bindal Pulp & Papers Private Limited and

Bindal Rolling Mills Limited.  The working capital limit is further collaterally secured by Equitable Mortgage of followings properties:

   PARTICULARS

d. Residential House at Block No. A-36, DLF City-1, Golf course road, Haryana in the name of Smt. Madhulika Goel W/o Sh.

Neeraj Goel. 

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS



NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LTD.

25th Annual Report 2020 83

NEERAJ PAPER MARKETING LIMITED

CIN: L74899DL1995PLC066194

NOTE `22'

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

-Provision for Gratuity 10.42

                         

12.98

                         

-Provision for Other 15.43

                         

1.58

                           

25.85

                         

14.56

                         

NOTE `23'

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Sale of products 14,296.79

                  

24,773.25

                  

Sale of services 129.92

                       

447.21

                       

14,426.71

                  
25,220.46

                  

Sale of products

14,296.79
                  

24,773.25
                  

Sale of services

129.92                       447.21                       

14,426.71                  25,220.46                  

NOTE `24'

OTHER INCOME (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Interest Income 1.49

                           

11.21

                         Other Income -

                             

2.09

                           
1.49

                           

13.30

                         

NOTE `25'

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

13,630.57

                  

23,204.09

                  
13,630.57

                  

23,204.09

                  
NOTE `26'

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

234.25

                       

1,291.38

                    

-

                             

234.25

                       

234.25

                       

1,057.13
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NOTE `27'

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Salaries and Wages 125.97

                       

144.36

                       

Contribution to Provident Fund 3.82

                           

3.74

                           

Contribution to ESI 0.86

                           

1.23

                           

Bonus 4.61

                           

5.58

                           

Gratuity 7.13

                           

8.22

                           

2.22

                           

2.40

                           

TOTAL 144.61

                       

165.53

                       

NOTE `28'

FINANCE COSTS (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Interest on Working Capital            172.52

                       

400.92

                       

47.76

                         

50.88

                         

Bank Charges 0.84

                           

53.21

                         

TOTAL 221.12
                       

505.01
                       

NOTE `29'

OTHER EXPENSES (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Selling and Distribution Expenses:

Advertisement Expenses 0.31

                           
0.27

                           Business Promotion Expenses -

                             

0.07

                           Freight Outward 0.44

                           

32.91

                         
Administrative Expenses:

A.G. Meeting/Other Meeting Expenses 1.35

                           

0.85

                           
Auditor's Remuneration 1.50

                           

1.75

                           

Computer Running & Maintenance Expenses 0.75

                           

0.75

                           

Director's Remuneration 36.00

                         

36.00

                         

Donations 0.01

                           

0.28

                           

Electricity & Water Supply Expenses 3.55

                           

3.63

                           

GST Penalty -

                             

1.05

                           

Insurance Expenses 6.17

                           

2.02

                           

Legal and Professional Fee 12.56

                         

17.38

                         

Loss on Sale of Car 0.01

                           

2.34

                           

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.43

                           

0.46

                           

-

                             

(0.25)

                          

2.68

                           

3.11

                           

Printing & Stationery 0.16

                           

0.24

                           

1.49

                           

1.56

                           

Rebate & Discount 0.16

                           

0.90

                           

Rent 0.36

                           

3.87

                           

16.24

                         

16.30

                         

(0.97)

                          

0.49

                           

2.06

                           

2.36

                           

Travelling Expenses 0.01

                           

2.16

                           

4.29

                           

4.84

                           

TOTAL 89.56

                         

135.34
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NOTE `30'

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Income Tax Expenses against SETCOM Order -

                             

7.04

                           

Service Tax -

                             

38.64

                         

TOTAL -

                             

45.68

                         

NOTE `31'

INCOME TAX

31.1

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Current Tax

Current year Provision 10.45

                         

37.82

                         

Tax paid (Excess Provision) P/Years (8.45)

                          
-

                             

MAT credit entitlement -
                             

-
                             

Total 2.00
                           

37.82
                         

Deferred Tax

Change in Deferred tax assets and liabilities (14.89)                                                 

Total (14.89)                                                 

(12.89)                        49.31                         

31.2

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

63.50

                         

83.09

                         
Enacted tax rate in India 25.168% 33.384%

Computed tax expense 15.98

                         

27.74

                         Exceptional items -

                             

19.35

                         

Gratuity 0.88

                           

4.10

                           

Others (29.75)

                        

(1.88)

                          

(12.89)

                        

49.31

                         

NOTE `32'

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

76.39

                         

33.78

                         

Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos)

                                

Nominal Value per Equity Share (Rs.) 10.00

                         

10.00

                         

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.69

                           

0.31

                           

Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 0.69

                           

0.31

                           

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

The applicable Indian statutory tax rate for year 2019-20 is 25.168% and for year 2018-19 was 33.384%. The company

has elected to exercise the option permitted under section of the Income - tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws

(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019. the Company has recognized provision of Income tax and

Exceptional items contain penalties imposed by revenue authorities under pending litigation and company has accepted the order

without any further dispute.
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NOTE '33'

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

397.61

                 

698.70

                 

ILC/FLC -

                       

-

                       

Bank Gaurantee

NOTE '34'

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

1.

1.50                     1.75                     

1.50                     1.75                     

NOTE '35'

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Director's Remuneration 36.00
                   

36.00
                   

NOTE '36'

(i)

Deepak Goel Wholetime Director

Parveen Kumar Goel Wholetime Director

Vipin Kumar Goel CFO

Amit Agarwal Director

Mansi Company Secretary

Ankur Sangal Independent Director

Pooja Bhardwaj Independent Director

Neha Agarwal Independent Director

Pankaj Goel Relative

Ishita Goel Relative

Chirag Goel Relative

Udit Goel Relative

Nutan Goel Relative

Radhika Goel Relative

Himashu Goel Relative

Apart of it, The company has also granted its corporate guarantee for credit facilities availed by Bindal Merchnadise unit of

Bindals Papers Mills Limited) from Allahabad Bank, Parliament Street, New Delhi Branch.The company has also granted its

guarantee for credit facilities availed by Satyavan Sales Promotion Private Limited from Bank of Maharashtra, New Delhi Branch.

However, Satyavan Sales Promotion Private Limited has repaid the entire amount of the credit facility to the bank in the month of

April, 2019 and thus, guarantee granted by Neeraj Paper Marketing Limited has been released by the bank.
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(ii)

Bindal Industries Limited

Bindal Pulp & Papers Private limited

Bindal Rolling Mills Limited

Brina Gopal Traders Private Limited

Shakumbhari Pulp and Paper Mills Limited

(iii)

ACS Paper India Private Limited

Deepak Goel & Sons

Kamla Goel & Sons

Pankaj Goel & Sons

Roshan Lal Ashok Kumar

(Rs. In Lacs)

NATURE OF TRANSACTION
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Directors Remuneration 18.00
                   

18.00
                   

Amount Payable -
                       

0.68
                     

Amount Receivable 7.45                     -                       

Unsecured Loan Received -                       20.00                   

Unsecured Loan Paid 20.00                   11.60                   

Amount Payable -                       20.00                   

Parveen Kumar Goel Directors Remuneration 18.00                   18.00                   
Amount Payable 0.28                     0.78                     

Vipin Kumar Goel Salary 6.25                     6.25                     
Amount Payable -

                       
1.50

                     

Mansi Salary 3.50
                     

1.49
                     Amount Payable 0.03

                     
0.28

                     

Ankur Sangal Sitting Fee 0.25
                     

-
                       

Pooja Bhardwaj Sitting Fee 0.20

                     

-

                       
Neha Agarwal Sitting Fee 0.30

                     

-

                       
Vaishali Mathpal Salary -

                       

2.03

                     
Amount Payable -

                       

-

                       
Pankaj Goel Salary 6.60

                     

6.60

                     
Amount Payable -

                       

0.50

                     
Amount Receivable 3.93

                     

-

                       Unsecured Loan Received 0.07

                     

3.41

                     

Unsecured Loan Paid 0.07

                     

3.41

                     Unsecured Loan Received 1.26

                     

0.82

                     

Unsecured Loan Paid 1.26

                     

0.82

                     
Udit Goel Unsecured Loan Paid -

                       

4.18

                     

Interest paid on U/S Loan -

                       

0.41

                     

Deepak Goel

Ishita Goel

Chirag Goel
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Unsecured Loan Received 0.08

                     

5.46

                     

Unsecured Loan Paid 1.51

                     

12.46

                   

Interest paid on U/S Loan -

                       

0.33

                     

Amount Receivable 1.43

                     

-

                       

Amount Paid 1.28

                     

-

                       

Amount Received 0.09

                     

-

                       

Amount Receivable 1.19

                     

-

                       

Himanshu Goel Sale of Vehicle 0.14
                     

-
                       

Purchases -
                       

3.75
                     

Sales -
                       

109.48
                 

Amount Payable -
                       

2.31
                     

Purchases 139.84
                 

506.49
                 

Sales 83.67
                   

205.67
                 

Amount Payable -
                       

171.83
                 

Amount Receivable 9.95                     -                       

Amount Paid 2.12                     -                       

Amount Received 2.12                     -                       

Amount Paid 1.46                     -                       

Amount Received 1.46                     -                       

Amount Paid 2.08                     -                       
Amount Received 2.08                     -                       

Roshan Lal Ashok Kumar Transfer of Investments in shares -                       25.00                   

NOTE '37'

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
37.1 Financial risk factors

37.1.1 Market Risk

(a) Foreign Currency Risk and sensitivity

Radhika Goel

ACS Paper India Private Limited

Nutan Goel

The Company’s operational activities expose to various risks i.e. market risk, credit risk and risk of liquidity. The Company

realizes that risks are inherent and integral aspect of any business. The primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of

markets and seek to minimize potential adverse on its performance. The primary market risk to the Company is

foreign exchange risk & interest rate risk. The Company uses derivative instruments to reduce foreign exchange risk

exposures.

The senior professionals working to manage the risks and the appropriate risk governance frame work for the

Company are accountable to the Board Audit Committee. This process provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that

the Company’s risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are

The Company’s exposure to risks is to a variety of risks, including the of changes in foreign currency

exchange rates, if any. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash of a instrument will

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Indian Rupee is the Company’s functional currency. As a consequence, the

Company’s results are presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. The Company has

foreign currency exposure on account of import of traded goods.

Shakumbhari Pulp and Paper Mills Limited  

Deepak Goel & Sons

Kamla Goel & Sons

Pankaj Goel & Sons
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(b) Commodity price risk and sensitivity

37.1.2 Credit risk

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

(Rs. In Lacs)

                                           

Trade receivables as at March 31, 2020                   826.82                4,926.46                5,753.28 

Trade receivables as at March 31, 2019                   302.69                6,131.32                6,434.01 

37.1.3 Liquidity risk

(Rs. In Lacs)

                                           Borrowings - Current 1,491.70
              

1,491.70
              

-
                       

-
                       Borrowings - Non-Current 765.91

                 
96.44

                   
560.16

                 
109.31

                 Trade payables 1,832.63
              

1,832.63
              

-
                       

-
                       Other Non-Current Liabilities 158.01

                 
31.60

                   
126.41

                 
-

                       

(Rs. In Lacs)

                                           
Borrowings - Current 1,351.16

              

1,351.16

              

-

                       

-

                       
Borrowings - Non-Current 844.62

                 

88.24

                   

550.63

                 

205.75

                 
Trade payables 2,888.33

              

2,888.33

              

-

                       

-

                       
Other Non-Current Liabilities 173.78

                 

34.76

                   

139.02

                 

-

                       
37.2 Competition and Price risk

1-5 year Above 5 year

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a instrument or customer contract, leading to a

loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its

Others Total

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without

incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and

collateral requirements. The Company principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash generated from

operations. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.

Upto 1 yearCarrying Amount

More than 

6months

The Company is exposed to the movement in price of key materials in domestic and international markets. The Company has in place

policies to manage exposure to in the prices of the key materials used in operations. The Company manages

in material price through hedging in the form of advance procurement when the prices are perceived to be low and also enters into

advance buying contracts as strategic sourcing initiative in order to keep material and prices under check cost of material hedged to

the extent possible.

1-5 year Above 5 year

The Company faces competition from local competitors. Nevertheless, it believes that it has competitive advantage in terms of high

quality products and by continuously upgrading its expertise and range of products to meet the needs of its customers.

Upto 1 yearCarrying Amount
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37.3 Capital Risk Management

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at                                            
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Borrowings 2,257.61
              

2,195.78
              

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 7.84
                     

7.23
                     

Less: Other bank balances 15.71
                   

46.16
                   

Net debt 2,234.06
              

2,142.39
              

Equity 2,527.59              2,442.70              

Capital and Net debt 4,761.65              4,585.09              

Gearing Ratio 47% 47%

NOTE '38'

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 

                                           
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

(i)                          -                            -   

(ii)                          -                            -   

(iii)                          -                            -   

(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and                          -                            -   

(v)                          -                            -   the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 

purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

The policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to maintain creditor and market and to sustain future

development. Capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders. In order to

strengthen the capital base, the company may use appropriate means to enhance or reduce capital, as the case may be.

   PARTICULARS

2020 and March 31, 2019 is as follows: 

   PARTICULARS

 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 

end of each accounting year; 

 the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the 

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; 

 the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 

 The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been 
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NOTE '39'

FAIR VALUES

(Rs. In Lacs)

31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019 31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Trade receivables                5,753.28                6,434.01                5,753.28                6,434.01 

Cash and cash equivalents                       7.84                       7.23                       7.84                       7.23 

Bank balances other than covered above                     15.71                     46.16                     15.71                     46.16 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - Current                1,491.70                1,351.16                1,491.70                1,351.16 

Borrowings - Non-Current                   765.91                   844.62                   765.91                   844.62 

Trade payables                1,832.63                2,888.33                1,832.63                2,888.33 

Other Non-Current Liabilities                   158.01                   173.78                   158.01                   173.78 

The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(i)

(ii)

NOTE '40'

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

40.1 (Rs. In Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

                      3.82                       3.74 

                      3.82                       3.74 

40.2

40.2.1 Gratuity

(i)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Discount rate (per annum) 6.80% 7.70%

Salary growth rate (per annum) 7.50% 7.50%

Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 0.00% 0.00%

Gratuity liability is obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method

made at the end of each reporting period. The plan is not funded by the Group. Such liability is included in salaries, wages and bonus.

Set out below is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the instruments that are

   PARTICULARS
Fair Value

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalent, other bank balances, trade receivables, short term borrowings, other

liabilities and trade payables approximate their fair value mainly due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

The fair value of non current borrowings is estimated by discounting future cash using rates applicable to instruments with

similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair values of non current borrowings is assessed by the management

to be same as their carrying value and is not expected to be if estimated by discounting future cash using

rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS
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(ii)
(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning                     46.89                     34.60 

Current Service Cost                       3.94                       5.55 

Interest Cost                       3.19                       2.67 

change in demographic assumptions                          -                            -   

                      2.11                     (0.90)

                  (15.23)                       4.97 

                    (3.65)                          -   

Past Service Cost                          -                            -   

Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates                          -                            -   

Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments                          -                            -   

Settlement Cost                          -                            -   

                         -                            -   

Present Value of Obligation as at the end                     37.25                     46.89 

(iii)

(Rs. In Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Service cost                       3.94                       5.55 

Interest cost                       3.19                       2.67 

                      7.13                       8.22 

(iv) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

change in demographic assumptions -
                       

-
                       

2.11
                     

(0.90)
                    

(15.23)
                  

4.97
                     

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense
-

                       
-

                       

(13.12)
                  

4.07
                     

(v) Bifurcation of PBO at the end of the year
(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Current liability                     10.42                     12.98 

Non-current liability                     26.83                     33.91 

(vi)
(Rs. In Lacs)

As at As at 
31/Mar/2020 31/Mar/2019

Year 1                     10.42                     12.98 

Year 2                       6.33                       1.19 

Year 3                       0.65                       5.32 

Year 4                       5.05                       5.96 

Year 5                       0.45                       5.00 

Year 6 to 10                       3.83                       8.47 

income(gain)/loss 

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS

   PARTICULARS
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NOTE '41'

NOTE '42'

NOTE '43'

FOR M/S RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Regn. No. 008692C

Sd/- Sd/-

(PRAVEEN KUMAR GOEL) (DEEPAK GOEL) 

Wholetime Director Wholetime Director

DIN - 00014638 DIN - 00200527

Sd/-

Partner

M.No. 408730 Sd/- Sd/-

(MANSI) (VIPIN KUMAR GOEL) 

Company Secretary 

Place: Delhi PAN - DNIPM9327Q

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have value on realisation in the ordinary course of the

business at least equal to the amount at which they have been stated in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020. 
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If	undelivered	please	return	to	:
NEERAJ	PAPER	MARKETING	LIMITED
218-	222,	Aggarwal	Prestige	Mall
Plot	No.	2,	Community	Center
Along	Road	No.	44,	Pitampura
New	Delhi	-	110034


